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LOCATION OF CORPORATION’S 
ESTATES AND FACTORIES

Tea and Coffee Estates  :  (1) Mudis Group of Estates, Mudis P.O., 
   Coimbatore Dist., 
   Tamil Nadu 642 117.

  (2) Singampatti Group of Estates, 
   Manjolai P.O., Tirunelveli Dist., 
   Tamil Nadu 627 420.

  (3) Dunsandle Estate, Dunsandle P.O., 
   Ootacamund, Nilgiri Dist., 
   Tamil Nadu 643 005.

  (4) Elkhill Group of Estates, P.O. Box No. 12, 
   Sidapur P. & T.O., South Coorg, 
   Karnataka 571 253.

  (5) Usambara Group, 
   Marvera & Herkulu Estate, 
   P.O. Box 22, Soni, Tanzania.

Weighing Products Division  : Plot 304, New GIDC, 
  Gundlav, 
  Valsad, Gujarat 396 035.

Healthcare Division  :  Plot No. 161-B, Village Danpur, 
  Rudrapur Kashipur Road, 
  Paragana-Rudrapur,Tehsil Kichha, 
  Udhamsingh Nagar, Uttarakhand 263 153.

Auto Electric Components Division  : Plot no. 128-133, 3rd Cross Street, 
  Nehru Nagar, Kottivakkam, Chennai, 
  Tamil Nadu 600 041.

Malaysian Branch  : Suite 628, 6th Floor, Pan Global Plaza, 
  Jalan Wong Ah Fook 80000, 
  Johor Bahru, Malaysia.
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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the One Hundred and Fifty-second Annual General Meeting of the 
members of The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Limited will be held on Thursday, the 3rd 
day of August, 2017 at 4.00 pm at Y B Chavan Auditorium, Gen. Jagannath Bhosle Marg, Mumbai 
400 021, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt :

 (a) the audited Financial Statements of the Corporation for the Financial Year ended  
31st March, 2017 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; 
and

 (b) the audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Corporation for the Financial Year 
ended 31st March, 2017 together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To declare a dividend.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Nusli Wadia [DIN: 00015731] who retires by rotation in 
terms of section 152(6) of the Companies Act,2013 and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 142 and other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act,2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Audit and 

the time being in force) the appointment of Messrs B S R & Co.LLP, Chartered Accountants 

from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual 

of Directors is hereby authorized to determine their remuneration as recommended by the 
Audit Committee”

 “RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors( hereinafter referred to as “the Board”)be and is 

Auditors namely Messrs B S R & Co. LLP , in respect of the audit of the accounts of the 

as auditor of the Corporation under Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 or an accountant 

the applicable laws of the concerned countries; and to determine the remuneration and other 
terms and conditions of their appointment as Branch Auditors as recommended by the Audit 
Committee.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS :

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 148 and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act,2013 ( “the Act”) read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014 

M/s. GLS & Associates, Cost & Management Accountants, Coimbatore , [ICWA Registration No 
M 4482], the Cost Auditors appointed by the Board to conduct the audit of the cost records 

year ending 31st March, 2018, be paid remuneration of ` 200,000/- ( Rupees Two lakhs only) 
plus such taxes as applicable and reimbursement of actual out-of-pocket expenses.
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 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Corporation be and is hereby 
authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to 
give effect to this Resolution.”

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions of the 

the time being in force) and Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Dr. (Mrs.) Minnie Bodhanwala (DIN: 00422067), who was 
appointed as an Additional Director of the Corporation by the Board of Directors (“the Board”) 
with effect from 30th

the date of this Annual General Meeting and who is eligible for appointment as Director and in 
respect of whom the Corporation has received a notice in writing from a member proposing 

Corporation, liable to retire by rotation.”

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to  Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions of the 

the time being in force) and Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Rules made thereunder read with Schedule IV of 
the Act,  Mr. Rajesh Batra (DIN: 00020764) who was appointed as an Additional Director of the 
Corporation by the Board with effect from 30th March, 2017, pursuant to Section 161 of the Act 

as a Director and in respect of whom the Corporation has received a notice in writing from a 

Director of the Corporation , he not being liable to  retire by rotation.

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Rajesh Batra, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent 

years from the date of this Annual General Meeting  upto 2nd August, 2022,  he not being liable 
to retire by rotation.”

By Order of the Board,

N. H. DATANWALA
Vice President Corporate & Company Secretary

9, Wallace Street,
Fort, Mumbai 400 001

Date: 30th May,2017.
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NOTES:
1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT 

ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF. SUCH A 
PROXY/ PROXIES NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE CORPORATION. However, a person may 

more than ten percent(10 %) of the total share capital of the Corporation. In case a proxy is 
proposed to be appointed by a Member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the 
Corporation carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as proxy for any other person 
or shareholder.

of the Corporation, duly completed and signed, not less than forty-eight hours before the 
commencement of the meeting. A Proxy form is sent herewith. Proxies submitted on behalf 
of companies, societies etc., must be supported by an appropriate resolution/authority, as 
applicable.

2. A Statement of Material Facts pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, which sets 
out the material facts relating to the Special Business set out in the accompanying Notice is 
attached hereto as Annexure I.

3. A brief resume of Directors proposed to be appointed/re-appointed, nature of their expertise 
in functional areas, names of companies in which they hold directorships and memberships/
chairmanships of Board Committees, shareholding are attached hereto as Annexure II.

4. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Corporation will be closed from 
Saturday, 22nd July, 2017 to Thursday, 3rd August, 2017 (both days inclusive).

5. Dividend, if declared at the Annual General Meeting, shall be paid to the members on or 
after Thursday, 10th August, 2017 to those members whose names appear on the Register of 
Members of the Corporation on 21st July, 2017, after giving effect to all valid share transfers 

Pvt. Ltd. on or before 21st July, 2017 in respect of shares held in physical form. In respect of 

closing hours of 21st July, 2017 as per details furnished by National Securities Depository Ltd. 
(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL) for this purpose.

6. Members are requested to notify immediately any change of address to their Depositary 
Participants (DPs) in respect of their demat accounts, and in respect of their physical 

Agents :
M/s. Karvy Computershare Pvt. Ltd (Unit : Bombay Burmah)
Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli,
Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad,
Telangana – 500 032, India
Telephone number: +91 40 6716 2222
Fax number: +91 40 2342 0814
E-mail: einward.ris@karvy.com
OR
M/s. Karvy Computershare Pvt. Ltd.
B- 24, Rajabahadur Mansion,
6, Ambalal Doshi Marg (Behind Bombay Stock Exchange),
Fort, Mumbai 400 001
Telephone Number : 66235412/27
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7. In view of the circular issued by SEBI, the Electronic Clearing Services (ECS/NECS) facility 
should mandatorily be used by Companies for distribution of dividend to its members. In order 
to avail the facility of ECS/NECS, members holding shares in physical form are requested to 
provide bank account details to the Corporation or its Registrar and Share Transfer Agents.

 Members holding shares in electronic form are hereby informed that bank particulars registered 
against their respective depository accounts will be used by the Corporation for payment of 
dividend. The Corporation or its Registrars cannot act on any request received directly from 
the Members holding shares in electronic form for any change of bank particulars or bank 
mandates. Such changes are to be advised only to the Depository Participant of the Members.

8. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made 

31st March, 2010 and onwards, which remains unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven (7) 
years from the date of its transfer to the unpaid dividend account of the Corporation would be 
transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) on the dates given in the table 
below:

Financial Year Date of Declaration of 
Dividend

Due date for transfer to IEPF

2009-2010 10.08.2010 17.09.2017

2010-2011 5.08.2011 09.09.2018

2011-2012 8.08.2012 16.09.2019

2012-2013 7.08.2013 13.09.2020

2013-2014 13.08.2014 19.09.2021

2014-2015 5.08.2015 09.09.2022

2015-2016 5.08.2016 09.09.2023

 Members who have so far not encashed the Dividend Warrants for the above years are advised 
to submit their claim at the earliest to the Registrars at either of the aforesaid addresses 
immediately quoting their folio number/ DP ID & Client ID.

9. Further, in terms of the provisions of Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read 
with Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and 
Refund) Rules, 2016 (“as amended from time to time”) (“the Rules”) the Corporation is required 
to transfer all shares in respect of which dividend has not been paid or claimed for a period of 
seven consecutive years to the Demat Account of the IEPF Authority to be opened by the IEPF 
Authority in the manner as may be prescribed under the Rule.

 In Compliance with the said Rules, the Corporation has communicated individually to the 
concerned shareholders whose shares are liable to be transferred/credited to the Demat 
Account of the IEPF Authority. The Corporation has uploaded on its website of the Corporation 
www.bbtcl.com under Investor Relations the details of such shareholders whose shares are to 
be transferred/credited to the Demat Account of the IEPF Authority.

 The shareholders may please note that the Corporation shall transfer the concerned shares held 
by them in physical or Demat form to the Demat Account of the IEPF Authority by the due date 

holding shares in physical shares and whose shares are liable to be transferred may note that 

registered in their name will stand automatically cancelled and be deemed non-negotiable. The 
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shareholders may further note that the details uploaded by the Corporation on its website as 
well as insertion of this information in the AGM Notice should be regarded and shall be deemed 

the purpose of transfer of shares to the Demat Account pursuant to the Rules.

 Shareholders may note that both the unclaimed dividend amount transferred to IEPF and the 

on such shares, if any, can be claimed back by them from the IEPF Authority after following the 
procedure prescribed in the Rules.

10. Members holding shares in physical form may avail themselves of the facility of nomination 
in terms of section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 by nominating a person to whom their 
securities shall vest in the event of their death. The prescribed form may be obtained from 

Registrars.

10. As part of the Green Initiative in Corporate Governance, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
(“MCA”), Government of India, through its Circular Nos. 17/2011 and 18/2011, dated April 

through electronic mode.

Corporation has been sending Annual Reports in the past few years to the e-mail address 
provided by some of the members.

members to provide/ update their email addresses giving their Registered Folio Number and/
or DP ID/Client ID at e-mail id einward.ris@karvy.com.

 Members are also informed that the full text of all Notices, Reports etc. sent by email to them 
will also be made available on our website http://bbtcl.com/investor-relations/annual-reports/

11. SEBI has also mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by members. 
Therefore, members holding shares in physical form are requested to submit their PAN to the 
Corporation or Karvy and members holding shares in electronic form may submit their PAN to 
their respective Depository Participants.

12. Members intending to require information about the Financial Statements, to be explained 
at the Meeting are requested to inform the Corporation at least a week in advance of their 
intention to do so, so that the papers relating thereto may be made available, if the Chairman 
permits such information to be furnished.

13. Members/Proxies attending the meeting are requested to complete the enclosed attendance 
slip and deliver the same at the entrance of the meeting hall.

14. Members are requested to bring their copy of the Annual Report to the meeting.

15. Voting through electronic means:

 In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Corporation is pleased to 

nd Annual General Meeting 
(AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-Voting Services 
provided by Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

 The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

 (i) The voting period begins on 31st July, 2017 at 9.00 am and ends on 2nd August,2017 at 5.00 
pm. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in 
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date 28th July, 2017 may 
cast  their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting 
thereafter.
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 (ii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

 (iii) Click on “Shareholders” tab.

 (iv)  Now Enter your User ID

  b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

  c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with 
the Company.

 (vi) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and 
voted on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax 

Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as 
physical shareholders)

Company/Depository Participant are requested to use 

two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your 
name is Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1 then enter 

Dividend Bank Details 
OR Date of Birth 
(DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy 
format) as recorded in your demat account or in the company 
records in order to login.

company please enter the member id / folio number in the 

 (viii) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

 (ix) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection 
screen. However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password 

for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided 
that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to 
share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password 

 (x) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on 
the resolutions contained in this Notice.

 (xi) Click on the EVSN for THE BOMBAY BURMAH TRADING CORPORATION, LIMITED.

 (xii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same 
the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES 
implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the 
Resolution.

 (xiii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.
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 (xiv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A 

change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

 (xv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your 
vote.

 (xvi) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the 
Voting page.

 (xvii) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the 

the system.

 (xviii)
android based mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. 
Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on your mobile.

 (xix) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians

are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates.

should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for 
which they wish to vote on.

cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the 
system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

 (xx) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently 
Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under 
help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

NOTE: Any person, who acquires shares of the Corporation and becomes member of the 
Corporation after 7th July, 2017 i.e. the date considered for dispatch of the notice, and holding 
shares as on the cut - off date i.e. 21st July, 2017 and who have not updated their PAN as also 
members who have not received the intimation of sequence number may obtain the login ID and 
sequence number by sending a request to Karvy Computershare Pvt Ltd..

16. Mr. Tushar Shridharani, Practicing Company Secretary, (Membership No. FCS 2690) has been 
appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

17. The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding three (3) working days from the conclusion 
of the e-voting period unblock the votes in the presence of at least two (2) witnesses not in the 

against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the Corporation.

website www.bbtcl.com and on the website of CDSL within three (3) days of passing of the 
resolutions at the AGM of the Corporation and communicated to the NSE and BSE Limited.

19. MEMBERS HOLDING EQUITY SHARES IN ELECTRONIC FORM, AND PROXIES THEREOF, ARE 
REQUESTED TO BRING THEIR DP ID AND CLIENT ID FOR IDENTIFICATION.
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ANNEXURE I TO THE NOTICE

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
Item No. 6
The Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee has approved the 
appointment of M/s. GLS & Associates , Cost & Management Accountants, Coimbatore, (ICWA 
Registration No. 4482 ) as Cost Auditors at a remuneration of ` 2,00,000/- (Rupees Two lakhs only) 
plus such taxes as applicable and reimbursement of actual out of pocket expenses incurred by 
them for the conduct of audit of the cost records of the Plantation and Auto Electric Components 

st

days.
The approval of the shareholders is required to be obtained for payment of remuneration to the 

st March, 2018. Hence, the resolution at Item no. 6 of 
the Notice.
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Corporation or their relatives is in any 

Notice.
The Board of Directors recommends the said resolution for approval by the shareholders.
Item No. 7
Dr. (Mrs.) Minnie Bodhanwala (DIN: 00422067) was appointed as an Additional Director on the 
Board of the Corporation w.e.f. 30th March, 2017 on the recommendation of the Nomination and 

of this Annual General Meeting. The Corporation has received a notice in writing from a member 
along with the deposit of requisite amount under Section 160 of the Act proposing the candidature 

The attention of the shareholders is invited to Annexure II  of the Notice wherein the required 
details pertaining to Dr. (Mrs.) Minnie Bodhanwala are set out.
Dr. Bodhanwala is interested in the resolution at Item No. 7 of the Notice as it relates to her 
appointment as a Director liable to retire by rotation . 
None of the other Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Corporation or their relatives is, in 

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution at Item No. 7 of the Notice for approval by the 
shareholders 
Item No. 8
Mr. Rajesh Batra (DIN: 00020764) was appointed as an Additional Director on the Board of the 
Corporation w.e.f. 30th March, 2017 on the recommendation of  the Nomination and Remuneration 

Meeting. The Corporation has received a notice in writing from a member along with the deposit of 

of Director of the Corporation.
The attention of the shareholders is invited to Annexure II of the Notice wherein the required details 
pertaining to Mr. Batra are set out. 
The Board has pursuant to sections 149 and 152 of the Act appointed Mr. Batra as a Director not 
liable to retire by rotation. He has also been appointed by the Board as an Independent Director, he 
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General Meeting upto 2nd August, 2022, he not being liable to retire by rotation.
Mr. Batra is interested in the resolution at Item No. 8 of the Notice, as it relates to his appointment 
as a Director and Independent Director not liable to retire by rotation.
None of the other Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Corporation or their relatives is, in 

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 8 of the Notice for approval by 
the shareholders.

ANNEXURE II TO THE NOTICE

Brief resume of Directors proposed to be appointed/ re-appointed as Directors

1. Mr. Nusli Wadia ( Item no. 3)

 Mr. Nusli Wadia, is a well-known Indian industrialist heading the Wadia Group of Companies 
besides being a Director on the Board of several Indian and foreign Companies. He joined the 
Corporation as Director in October, 1980 and has been the Chairman of the Corporation since 
27th July, 1982. Having extensive experience and expertise in general business management 

Cotton Textiles Export Promotion Council (TEXPROCIL), Associated Chambers of Commerce 

during the period 1998 to 2004. He was the Convenor of the Special Group Task Force on Food 

Special Subject Group to review regulations & procedures to unshackle Indian Industry and 
on the Special Subject Group on Disinvestment. He was a member of the ICMF from 1984-85 
to 1990-91 and is a Trustee of the Executive Committee of the prestigious Nehru Centre. Mr. 
Nusli Wadia has a distinct presence in public affairs and has actively associated with leading 
charitable and educational institutions.

 Mr. Wadia holds over eight percent shares in the capital of the Corporation. His other 
directorships include The Bombay Dyeing & Manufacturing Co. Ltd. (Chairman) , Britannia 
Industries Ltd. (Chairman), Go Airlines (India) Limited (Chairman), Wadia Techno Engineering 
Services Limited besides directorships in 6 foreign companies and 1 private company.

 He is also on the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Corporation, The Bombay 
Dyeing & Manufacturing Co. Ltd. , Britannia Industries Ltd and Go Airlines (India) Limited.

2.  Dr. (Mrs.) Minnie Bodhanwala (Item no. 7)

Wadia Maternity Hospital and Bai Jerbai Wadia Hospital for Children, Parel, Mumbai.

 Under her stewardship, the Wadia Hospitals have won 21 prestigious awards in a span of 
one year. Dr. Bodhanwala was honoured with more than 40 awards, which include various 
prestigious awards like the “International Award in Healthcare” by the Thai Chamber of 
Commerce, Bangkok; “Global Award for Sustainable Healthcare Models with Revenue 
Turnover”, Dubai; “Leading Business Women of the Year” by iiGlobal, Mumbai; Life Time 
Achievement Award in Healthcare by National Excellence Awards 2015.

  She is highly-motivated, pro-active passionate individual holding a rich enormous experience 
of 30 years with exceptional liaison, teamwork, leadership, & organizational abilities to thrive in 
a fast-paced, results-oriented business environment. With an entrepreneurial spirit to foresee 
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Green Belt – Six Sigma; Principal Assessor, NABH ISO Auditor 9001, 14001, DPE(USA). Dr. 

 Outside Directorship: National Peroxide Limited, Axel Polymers Limited, The Bombay Dyeing 
& Manufacturing Co. Ltd.

Remuneration Committee of the Boards of Axel Polymers Limited.

3. Mr. Rajesh Batra (Item no. 8)

 Mr. Rajesh Batra, 62, did his schooling in Campion School, Mumbai and graduated from 
Elphinstone College, in 1975. He then obtained a Diploma in Systems Management from 
Jamnalal Bajaj Institute in 1978.

 Son of Mr. Ram Batra, a leading Businessman and Sheriff of Bombay in 1978, Mr. Rajesh Batra, 
along with his brother Mr. Rajiv Batra, founded PROLINE in 1983. The brand has a national 
presence and is presently sold through several exclusive outlets, major department stores & 
malls and several hundred retail outlets.

 Mr. Batra is also the Chairman of Cravatex Ltd., which through its subsidiary Cravatex Brands 

 Mr. Rajesh Batra is a Director on the Board of several Companies. Besides this, he is a trustee 
on several charitable trusts and promotes tennis through Ram Batra Memorial Foundation.

 Mr. Rajesh Batra holds 6,250 equity shares of the face value of ̀  2/- each in the Corporation and 
is not related to other Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Corporation.

 Outside Directorship: National Peroxide Limited, Proline India Ltd., B. R. T. Ltd., Cravatex Ltd., 
Proline Exports Pvt. Ltd., R.B. Fitness & Trading Pvt. Ltd., Cravatex Brands Pvt. Ltd.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Boards of National Peroxide Limited; 

By Order of the Board

N. H. DATANWALA
Vice President Corporate & Company Secretary

9, Wallace Street,
Fort, Mumbai 400 001

Dated, the 30th May, 2017
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Your Directors hereby present  their Annual Report together with Audited Financial Statements for 
the year ended 31st March, 2017:
I. Financial Results:

 (a) Standalone Financial Results
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2017 31.03.2016

Total Revenue 31,853 27,559

(356) (3,216)

(320) (3,271)

Retained Earnings 13,408 14,585

840 840

 (b) Overview of Performance

  The Corporation achieved a gross 
income of ` 31,853 lakhs compared to 
` 27,559 lakhs for 2015-16. This includes 
income of ` 2,470 lakhs on account of 

income of ` 29,383 lakhs at operating 

higher compared to ` 27,559 lakhs for 
previous year, representing a growth of 
6% over the previous year.

  The overall performance has shown 
improvement over the previous year, as 

 
` 2,826 lakhs compared to ` 3,216 lakhs 
for the previous year. Number of steps 
were taken to reduce losses by closing 

operations for Coffee at plantations 
division.

  Despite lower production of tea and 

operations, higher wage costs and 
unfavourable weather conditions the 
overall losses at plantation division were 
brought down substantially compared 
to previous year.

  Health care and Electromags division 
registered a marginal increase in  

turnover, but reported marginally lower 

continued to perform satisfactorily.

the transition from IGAAP to IND AS. 
The Corporation is required to prepare 
the Financial Statements as per IND 
AS. As a result the total comprehensive 
income amounted to ` 6,103 lakhs 
as against negative comprehensive 
income of ` 8,044 lakhs for previous 
year. The substantial increase in the 
comprehensive income for the year was 
primarily due to changes in fair value of 
investment of equity shares.

  The Corporation’s loss for the year 

income was substantially lower at ` 320 
lakhs as compared to the loss of ` 3,271 
lakhs for the previous year.

  Division wise performance:
   (i) Tea :

   Production of own Tea was 48 
lakh kgs against 45 lakh kgs of the 
previous year. Overall production of 
tea including bought leaf was lower 
at 64 lakh kgs compared to 74 lakh 
kgs in the previous year. Average 
selling price per kg of tea was higher 
at ` 121 per Kg compared to ` 110 
per kg in the previous year
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  (ii) Coffee :
   Own coffee production for the year 

was at 667 tons compared to 625 
tons in the previous year. There 
was no production of coffee from 
outsourced beans as against 981 
tons in previous year. The sales 
turnover for the year at 2467 tons was 
substantially higher compared to 975 
tons in the previous year following 
the liquidation of high inventories of 
coffee in the previous year. Average 
selling prices were marginally lower 
at ` 1.60 lakhs per ton compared to 
1.86 lakh per ton in the previous year.

  (iii) Electromags
   The turnover for the year was 

marginally higher at ` 10,938 lakhs 
compared to ` 10,664 lakhs in the 
previous year. However the results 
were marginally impacted due to 
higher input cost and pressure 
on selling prices and effects of 
demonetization and downward trend 
in the diesel car segment.

  (iv) HealthCare
   Dental product business under 

healthcare division performed 
satisfactorily and reported marginally 
higher turnover of ` 2,541 lakhs 
compared to ` 2,396 lakh in the 
previous year.

 (c) Subsidiaries and Associate Companies 
  Financial Performance
  A report on the performance and 

Subsidiaries and Associates included in 
the Consolidated  Financial Statements 
is provided in Form AOC-1 and forms 
part of this Annual Report.

  The Corporation has only one material 

Industries Limited.

year
  Acquisition:
  The Corporation’s wholly owned 

Malaysia, set up in Mauritius an 

Investments Limited, and holds 100% 
Equity share capital of the said Company. 

Limited has become a step down 
subsidiary of the Corporation.

Investments Limited acquired 
4,92,18,338 shares representing 
23.84% of the paid up share capital of 

2,96,39,375 shares representing 14.35% 
together with the further acquisition 
of additional Equity shares by the 
Corporation and its subsidiary, now 
constitute 38.18% of the paid up share 

become an Associate of the Corporation 
with effect from 20th March, 2017.

 (d) Consolidated Financial Results

  The Corporation has prepared 
Consolidated Financial Statements 
in accordance with the applicable 
Accounting Standards as prescribed 
under  the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 of the Companies Act, 2013. The 
Consolidated Financial Statements 

those of its subsidiaries and associates.  
As required under Regulation 33 of 
the Listing Conditions, the Audited 
Consolidated Financial 

  Statements together with the 
Independent Auditors’ Report thereon 

Report.

with effect from 20th March, 2017, 

2017 for presenting its annual accounts 
for the year ended 31st March, 2017 
so as to give effect to the merger of 
its wholly owned subsidiary, Archway 
Investment Company Limited with 
effect from 1st April, 2016. The merger 

Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal 
(‘NCLT’). In view of the above and the 



15

Annual Report 2016-2017

31st March, 2017, the consolidated 
results of the Corporation have been 
prepared without giving effect to the 
adjustments on application of the equity 
method under IND AS 28. The impact 
of such non-adjustment is currently 
not ascertainable. The Independent 
Auditors’ Report on the consolidated 

  Consolidated sale of products and 
services of the Corporation  for the year 
ended 31st March, 2017 was ` 971,288 
lakhs as compared with ` 899,820 lakhs 
in 2015-2016, registering a growth of 

ended 31st March 2017 was higher by 
8% at ` 85,846 lakhs compared with  
` 79,198 lakhs in the previous year.

  In accordance with Section 136 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, the audited 

statements, and the audited accounts 
of each subsidiary, are available on the 

 (e) Dividend

  Your Directors have recommended 
payment of dividend @ 50%  i.e. ` 1 
per share of `  
` 1 per share). The dividend, if approved 
by the shareholders at the Annual 
General Meeting, will be paid to those 
shareholders whose names appear 
on the Register of Members of the 
Corporation at the close of business on 
22nd July, 2017.

II. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, 
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO

 Information pertaining to conservation 
of energy , technology absorption and 

accordance with the provisions of clause 
(m) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8(3) of 
The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is 
appended as Annexure A to this Report.

III. DIRECTORS

 (a) Appointment/Re-appointment

  During the year under review, Dr.(Mrs.) 

Director of the Corporation with effect 
from 31st

places on record its appreciation of the 
services rendered by her during her 
tenure as a Director of the Corporation.

 

Additional Directors respectively with 
effect from 30th March, 2017. Additional  

ensuing Annual General Meeting, but 
are eligibile for and seek reappointment  
as in the case of Dr. (Mrs.) Minnie 

retire by rotation, whereas in the case 

an Independent Director for the period 
of 5 years from 3rd August, 2017 not 
being liable to retire by rotation.  The 
Corporation has received notices in 
writing from a Member proposing their 

the Corporation. Their appointment 
as Directors of the Corporation is 
subject to approval of shareholders at 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

a Director of the Corporation, liable to 

appointment as an Independent Director 
for a term of 5 years from 3rd August, 
2017, and he not being liable to retire by 
rotation. 

  In accordance with the applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
(‘the Act’) and the Articles of Association 
of the Corporation, Mr. Nusli  Wadia, 
retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting and being eligible, 
offers himself for re-appointment. 
Your Directors recommend the re-
appointment of Mr. Nusli Wadia as 
Director of the Corporation.

  Necessary resolutions for the 
appointment of Dr.(Mrs.) Minnie 
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the re-appointment of Mr. Nusli Wadia 
have been included in the Notice 
convening the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting and requisite details have been 
provided in the Statement of Material 
facts under section 102 of the Act and 

 (b) Directors’ Responsibility Statement

  Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the 
Directors to the best of their knowledge 

  (i) in the preparation of the annual 
accounts, the applicable accounting 
standards have been followed  along 

material departures;

  (ii) they have selected such accounting 
policies and applied them 
consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent so as to give a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs 
of the Corporation at the end of the 

Corporation  for that period ;

  (iii) they have taken proper and 

of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding the assets of 
the Corporation and for preventing 
and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities;

  (iv) they have prepared the annual 
accounts on a going concern basis;

controls to be followed by  the   
Corporation and that such internal 

were operating    effectively; and 

  (vi) they have devised proper systems 
to ensure compliance with the 
provisions of all applicable laws and 
that such systems were adequate 
and operating effectively.

systems established and maintained 

by the Corporation, reports of 
the internal, statutory, cost and 
secretarial auditors duly reviewed 

including the Audit Committee, 

controls were adequate and 
operating effectively  during the 

IV. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
(CSR)

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
Committee in accordance with Section 135 
of the Companies Act, 2013 comprising of 
three  Directors including two Independent 
Directors. The CSR Policy of the Corporation  
and   initiatives taken by the Corporation with 
respect to  Corporate Social Responsibility 
during the year under review are in 
accordance with  the Companies (Corporate 
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. 
The requisite details are appended to this 
Report as Annexure B.

V. EMPLOYEES

 (a) Key Managerial Personnel

  Pursuant to Section 203 of the Act, the 
Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of 
the Corporation are Mr. Ness Wadia, 
Managing Director, Mr. Amit Chhabra, 

Company Secretary. There has been no 
change in KMPs during the year.

 (b) Particulars of Employees

  The information as per Section 197(12) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014, is appended to this Report 
as Annexure C.

  Having regard to the provisions of the 

Act, the Annual Report is  being sent 
to the members and others entitled 

employees’ particulars as required under 
Rule 5(2) of the aforesaid Rules. The said 
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information is available for inspection by 

the Corporation during business hours 
on working days  up to the date of the 
ensuing  Annual General Meeting. If 
any member is interested in obtaining 
a copy thereof, such member may write 
to the Company Secretary and the same 
will be furnished on request. 

 (c) Disclosure on Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace

  The Corporation  has set up an Internal 
Complaints Committee for providing 
a redressal mechanism pertaining to 

at workplace. There was no case of 

year under review.

VI. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

 In terms of the provisions of Regulation 34 

part of the Annual  Report.

VII. GOVERNANCE / SECRETARIAL

 (a) Corporate Governance Report

  In accordance with the provisions 

2015, a separate report on Corporate 
Governance along with the Auditors’ 

conditions of Corporate Governance is 
appended to this Report as Annexure D. 

 (b) Business Responsibility Report

Responsibility Report of the Corporation 
for the Financial Year 2016-17 forms part 
of this Annual Report.

 (c) Extract of Annual Return

of the Annual Return in Form MGT 9 
pursuant to the provisions of section 
92 of the Act read with Rule 12 of 
the Companies (Management and  
Administration) Rules, 2014 is appended 
to this Report as Annexure E.

 (d) Board Evaluation

  Pursuant to the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, and Regulation 
19 of the Listing Regulations,2015,  

performance evaluation of its own 
performance and that of its Committees 
viz. Audit Committee, Stakeholders’ 
Relationship Committee and Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee , and of 
the individual Directors. The manner in 
which the evaluation has been carried 

Governance Report.

 (e) Nomination and Remuneration Policy

Committee, has formulated a Policy 
for the remuneration  of Directors and  

the  Policy is provided in the Corporate 
Governance Report and also posted on 

 (f) Declaration by Independent Directors

  The Corporation  has received necessary 
declaration from each  Independent 
Director under Section 149(7) of the 

meets  the criteria of independence  laid 
down in  Section 149 (6) of the Act and  
the Listing Regulations.

 (g) Board Meetings:

were duly convened and held. The 

3 of the Corporate Governance Report 
that forms part of this Annual Report. 
The intervening gap between any 
two meetings was within the period 
described under the Companies Act, 
2013.

 (h) Whistle Blower Policy

are given in the Clause No. 3(a) of the 
Corporate Governance Report.
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 (i) Related Party Transactions

  The Corporation has formulated a Policy 
on Related Party Transactions  which  is 

  All transactions entered into with related 

Act, 2013  and Regulations 2(1)(zc) and 

during the  year under review,  were in 
the ordinary course of business and on 
an arms’ length basis and did not attract 
the provisions of Section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. With regard to 
transactions with Related parties under  
the provisions of Regulation 23  of the 
Listing Regulations, 2015, prior approval 
of the Audit Committee was obtained 
wherever required.

  During the year under review, the 
Corporation  had not entered into any 

with related parties which could be 
considered as material in nature. 
Accordingly, there are no material 
related party transactions to be reported 
in Form AOC-2.

  Disclosures pertaining to transactions 
with related parties are given in Note 
no. 50 of the  Notes forming part of the 
Standalone Financial Statements for the 
year 2016-2017.

 (j) Risk Management Policy 

  The Corporation has formulated a 
Risk  Management Policy. Major risks 

and functions are systematically 
addressed through mitigating actions 
on a continuing basis and are reported 
periodically to the Audit Committee 

Management functions are covered in 
the Corporate Governance Report.

 (k)  Insurance 

  The Corporation’s plant and machinery, 
building, stocks and assets are 
adequately insured.

 (l) Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and 
Investments

  The details of Loans, Guarantees 
and Investments covered under 
the provisions of Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are given in Note 
no. 48 forming part of the Standalone 
Financial Statements for the year 2016-
2017.

 
The Regulators

orders passed by the Regulators or 
Courts or Tribunals impacting the going 
concern status and the Corporation’s 
operations in future.

VIII. AUDITORS

 (a) Statutory Auditors

  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 
139 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) and the Rules made thereunder, 

Chartered Accountants, were appointed 
as  Statutory Auditors of the Corporation 

Annual General Meeting held on 13th 

the members at every Annual General 

submitted a written consent that they 

Auditors of the Corporation in terms 
of Section 139 of the Act and that they 
also satisfy the criteria provided in 
Section 141 of the Act. The Auditors 

Accountants of India as required under 

Regulations,2015.

  Their appointment will require to be 

Annual General Meeting.

 (b) Cost Audit

  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 
148 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) read with the relevant 
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recommendation of Audit Committee, 

as  Cost Auditors of  the Plantations and 
Auto Electric Components divisions of 

2017-18 at a remuneration of `
(Rupees Two lakhs only) plus such 

remuneration payable to them is required 

ensuing Annual General Meeting.

 (c) Secretarial Audit 

  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 
204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014, the Corporation  appointed  
Mr. Tushar Shridharani, Practicing  
Company Secretary  as  Secretarial 
Auditor for the year 2016-2017. The 
Report of the Secretarial Auditor  is 
appended as Annexure F. 

 (d) Internal Auditors

  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 
138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the Companies (Accounts) Rule, 

appointed as Internal Auditors of the 
Corporation for the Financial Year 2016-

Internal Auditors for the Financial Year 
2017-2018.

reservations, adverse remarks or 
disclaimers made by the Statutory  
or the Secretarial Auditors in their 
respective reports on Standalone 
Financial Statements.

consolidated accounts with regard to 

2017, has been dealt with in para I(d)

IX. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

 The Corporation maintains adequate and 
effective  internal  control systems which  
are commensurate with the nature, size and 

business. The internal control systems in 
all Divisions of the Corporation including 

follow-up actions are reported to the Audit 
Committee. The Audit Committee reviews 
the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Corporation’s internal control requirement 
and monitors the implementation of audit 
recommendations.

 The Corporation has in place adequate 
Internal Financial Controls with reference to 
Financial Reporting which ensure adherence 
to the Corporation’s policies, safeguarding 
of its assets, maintaining proper accounting 

information. During the year, such controls 
were tested and no reportable material 
weaknesses in design or operation were 
observed.

X. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

 Your Directors thank all customers, 
shareholders, suppliers, bankers, 
employees and all other business associates 
for their continued support.

Nusli N Wadia
Mumbai; 30 May, 2017 Chairman
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Annexure A

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION,

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

(1) Steps taken on conservation of Energy :

 At Plantation Division :

 a) Emphasis and close monitoring of maintenance of optimum Power factor at Tea Factories 
continued during the year.

 b) Favourable result have been obtained after installation of MD controller at the factories at 
Mudis and Singampatti Tea Estates.

 At Auto Electric Components:

 Environment Management Programme was used to reduce consumption of energy. Also taken-

(2) Steps taken for utilizing alternate sources of energy:

enabled reduction in consumption of energy. Windmill in the wind belt of Tamil Nadu meets with 

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

 (i) Efforts made towards Technology Absorption:

  At Plantation Division:

  The Corporation has undertaken a programme for development of the all season Mechanised 
Intelligent Tea Harvester for harvesting tea leaves. The validation of the development so far 

looked at.

  At Auto Electric Components:

Alternater Starter Motors to grow in passenger vehicle segments. It is also looking at non-
auto segment for its product with the internal know-how technology.

substitution:

 (iii) There was no import of technology during the last three years.

(C)  FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO:

` 39,800 Lakhs.

` 1,443 Lakhs.
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REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES – FINANCIAL YEAR 2016-2017

1. A brief outline of the Corporation’s policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed 
to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the  policy and projects or programs:

2. The Composition of the  Committee:
 The Committee comprises of Mr. A. K. Hirjee, Mr. M. L. Apte, (Independent Directors) and Mr. 

Jeh Wadia (Promoter Director).
` NIL in view of substantial loss.

` NIL

` NIL.
  However, the Corporation continued to pursue its  activities by maintenance of public roads 

through its estates and building for community welfare and schools.
 (b) Amount unspent, if any : NIL

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
S. No CSR Project 

or activity 
Sector in 
which the 
Project is 
covered

Projects or programs
(1) Local area or 

other;
(2) Specify the 

State and district 
where projects 
or programs 
was undertaken

Amount outlay 
(budget) 
project or 
programs wise
`in lakhs

Amount spent on 
the projects or 
programs Sub-
heads: 
(1) Direct 

on project or 
programs;

(2)  Overheads 
`in lakhs

Cumulative 

upto to the 
reporting 
period
` in lakhs

Amount 
spent: 
Direct or 
through 
implemen-
ting 
agency 
` in lakhs

1. Public Roads 
through the 
Estates 

Transportation 
Infrastructure 

Mudis, Singampatti 
, and Dunsandle 
Estates (Tamil Nadu)

6.00 5.82 5.82 Direct

2. Maintenance 
of  buildings 
for community 

including 
water supply 
thereto

Housing Mudis, Singampatti 
and Dunsandle 
Estates
(Tamil Nadu)

5.00 4.22 4.22 Direct

3. Maintenance 
of school 
buildings

Mudis, Singampatti 
and Dunsandle 
Estates (Tamil Nadu)

4.00 3.70 3.70 Direct

TOTAL 15.00 13.74 13.74
Give details of implementing agency: Direct

objectives and Policy of the Corporation.

Nusli N. Wadia      A. K. Hirjee
Chairman       Chairman,  Committee
Mumbai : 30th May, 2017

Annexure  B
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Annexure C

Statement of Disclosure of Remuneration under Section 197 of Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 
5(1) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

 i. Ratio of the remuneration of each Managing Director to the median remuneration of the 

S. 
No.

Name of Director/
KMP

Designation Ratio of remuneration 
of each Director to 

median remuneration 
of employees

Percentage 
increase in 

Remuneration

1. Mr. Ness Wadia Managing 
Director

319.03 Nil

2. Mr. N. H. Datanwala Vice President 
Corporate 

Secretary

Not Applicable Nil

3. Mr. Amit Chhabra Chief Financial Not Applicable Nil

  Note :

year under review, the details of which are provided in the Corporate Governance Report 

above.

2016-17 as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 

  c) Employees for the purpose above includes all employees at all divisions of the 
Corporation.

2016-2017 was 5.5%.

 iii. There are 5607 permanent employees on the pay roll of the Corporation as on 31st March, 
2017.

 iv. Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the Managerial 
Personnel in the Financial Year 2016-17 on comparable basis was 5% over previous year 

2016-17 as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved 

 v. The remuneration paid during the year 2016-2017 is as per the Remuneration Policy of the 
Corporation.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

Annexure D

1. Corporation’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance:

 The Corporation believes that good Corporate Governance is a pre-requisite for achieving 
sustainable corporate growth and enhancing value for all   stakeholders in the business.

 Good corporate  governance  emerges from transparency in business dealings and having in    

2. Board of Directors:

st

(8) Directors  out of which four (4) are Independent Directors , one (1) Woman Director  and  one 

th May 2016; 
5th August, 2016;4th October,2016; 8th November, 2016; 10th February, 2017 and 30th March, 2017.

General Meetings are as follows:

Name of the Director Category No. of 
Board 

Meetings 
attended 
(out of 6)

Whether 
attended 
last AGM 
held on 
5.8.2016

No. of 
Directorships 
in other public 
companies+

No. of Committee 
positions held 
in other public 
companies#

Chairman Member Chairman Member
Mr. Nusli N. Wadia, 
Chairman

 6 Yes 3 1 - -

Mr. A. K. Hirjee,  
Vice Chairman

Independent 5 Yes 2 2 4 2

Mr. M. L. Apte Independent 6 Yes - 5 - 4
Mr. D. E. Udwadia Independent 5 Yes - 7 1  6
Mr. Jeh Wadia  6 Yes - 4 - 3

 Independent 4 Yes - - - -

 Independent - - - 5 - 3

Dr. (Mrs) Minnie 
 

- - - 3 - 1

Mr. Ness Wadia, 
Managing Director Managing 

Director

5 Yes 1 5 - 2

which are neither subsidiaries nor holding companies of public companies.

of  Public Limited Companies.

effect from 30th March, 2017.
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 Note: Mr. Nusli N. Wadia, Mr. Jeh Wadia and Mr. Ness Wadia are relatives as per section 2(77) of 

 Mr. A K Hirjee, Mr. M L Apte and  Mr. D E Udwadia were appointed as Independent Directors at 
the 149th Annual General Meeting of the Corporation held on 13th August,2014 for a period of 

th

with effect from 31st December, 2016.

3. Committees of the Board:

Committee, the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee and the Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) Committee.

 (a) Audit Committee:

  The composition, powers, role and terms of reference of the  Audit Committee are in  
accordance with the requirements of section 177 of the Companies Act,2013 and the Rules 

Regulations,2015.

  The Audit Committee comprises of 3  Independent Directors:

Auditors  and Internal Auditors  attend Audit Committee meetings as Invitees. Mr. N H  
Datanwala, Vice President Corporate and Company Secretary, acts as the Secretary to the 
Committee.

of the internal control systems and risk management process, vigil mechanism, related party 
transactions, monitoring process for compliance with laws and regulations and the Code of 
Conduct. The Audit Committee also reviews management letters and the responses thereto 
by the management.

dates being 26th May, 2016; 3rd August, 2016; 8th November, 2016; 20th January,2017 and 6th 
February, 2017.

  Details of attendance of each member at the Audit Committee Meetings are as follows:

Name No. of Audit Committee Meetings attended
Mr. M. L. Apte 5

Mr. D  E. Udwadia 5

Mr. A. K. Hirjee    4

1
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  Internal Audit and Control:

  The appointment and remuneration of the internal auditors and the internal audit plan are 
approved by the Audit Committee. 

reviewed by the Audit Committee.
  Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy:

vigil  mechanism for employees and Directors of the Corporation to report to the Chairman of 
the Audit Committee. The said policy has been uploaded on the website of the Corporation.

 (b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee:
  The composition, powers, role and terms of reference of the Committee are in accordance 

with the requirements mandated under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

  The Committee has also adopted the NRC Charter.
  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) comprises of 3 Independent    Directors 

  The broad terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee  include:

Oversight of the familiarisation  programme of directors. 

  During the year under review, 1 meeting of the Committee were held on 30th March, 2017. 

Name No. of NRC Meetings attended
Mr. M. L. Apte 1
Mr. Nusli N. Wadia  1
Mr. A. K. Hirjee -
Mr. D. E. Udwadia 1

  Remuneration Policy:

  The broad objectives of the Policy are :
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Personnel and Senior Management; 

to  their  effort, performance, dedication and achievement relating to the Corporation’s 
operations; and

talented managerial persons and create competitive advantage.

  The remuneration structure of Managing Director comprises of basic salary, special  

NRC, subject to the overall limits of remuneration  governed by the respective shareholders’ 
approval. 

  Details of remuneration paid to Managing Director during the year 2016-17 are given below:
(In rupees)

Salary (including 
allowances and 

bonus)

Contribution to 
Provident & other Funds 

excluding Gratuity

Perquisites in cash 
or kind

Mr. Ness Wadia 28,998,400 5,089,392    724,000
  The Corporation has not granted any stock options to its whole-time director during the year. 

Mr. Ness Wadia holds 5,000 Shares in the Corporation.
  Although there has been no increase in the remuneration paid to Mr. Ness Wadia in the 

Government for approval to the payment of  the same remuneration  to Mr. Ness Wadia as it 

  The application has been made as Mr. Ness Wadia holds direct and indirect interest in the 

approved by the shareholders and computed in the manner laid down in section 198 of the 

below:
(In Rupees)

Name of Director Sitting fees for Board 
and Committee 

Meetings

Total No. of Shares 
held in the Corporation 
as on 31st March, 2017

Mr. Nusli N. Wadia 140,000 61,41,505
Mr. A. K. Hirjee 240,000 1,750
Mr. M. L. Apte 380,000 Nil 
Mr. D. E. Udwadia 240,000 Nil 
Mr. Jeh Wadia 140,000 3,500

100,000 Nil 
Nil Nil
Nil 6,250
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  During the year ended 31st March, 2017, the Corporation paid `

Mr. D. E. Udwadia is the proprietor of the above concern. The Corporation has received 

31st 

  Evaluation of Performance of the Board, Its Committees and Individual Directors

  Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the corporate governance 

and that of its Committees and individual directors.

inputs from all the Directors.  The performance of the Committees was evaluated by the 

Committee (“NRC”) reviewed the performance of the individual Directors. A separate meeting 
of Independent Directors was also held to review the performance of non-independent 

of committees, effectiveness of committee meetings etc. The criteria for performance 

committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and 
constructive contribution and inputs in meetings etc.  In addition, the Chairman  was also 
evaluated on the key aspects of his role.

 (c) Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee:

  The composition, powers, role and terms of reference of the Committee are in accordance 
with the requirements mandated under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations,2015.

  The broad terms of reference of the said Committee are as follows:

  i) To look into the redressal of grievances such as transfer of security,  non-receipt of annual 
reports, dividends, interest etc. of shareholders of the  Corporation ;

  ii) To approve and monitor transfers, transmission, splitting, consolidation, dematerialisation, 
rematerialisation of securities issued by the Corporation ;

  iii) To carry out the functions as envisaged under the Code of Conduct to regulate, monitor 
and report trading by insiders and code of practices and procedures for fair disclosures 
of unpublished price sensitive information adopted by the Corporation in terms of 

   The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee (SRC) comprises of two Independent   
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   During the year under review, one meeting of this  Committee was held on 30th March, 
2017.

Name of Director No. of Meetings attended
Mr. A. K. Hirjee -

Mr. M. L. Apte 1

Mr. Ness Wadia 1

the transfer deeds presented in respect of transfer of shares of the Corporation held in 
physical form. The transfer deeds are sent to the directors every week for their approval 

   All shares received for transfer which were correct and valid in all  respects, were 
registered and dispatched within 15 days of receipt of the documents. During the year 
under review, Transfer Deeds were sent 21 times for the approval of the Directors.

No. of shareholders’ complaints received during the year 4

No. of complaints not resolved to the satisfaction of shareholders Nil

No. of pending share transfers Nil

by investors and investors can reach the Corporation  at  investorservices@bbtcl.com

 (d) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee:

  The CSR Committee’s constitution and terms of reference are in compliance with provisions 
of the Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Director :

  During the year, one meeting of the CSR Committee was held on 30th March, 2017  wherein 
Mr. M. L. Apte  and Mr. Jeh Wadia  were present

  The broad terms of reference of the CSR Committee include: 

in Schedule VII;

clause (i); and 

  (iii) monitor the CSR Policy of the Corporation from time to time.
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 (e) Independent Directors’ Meeting:

  During the year under review, a separate meeting of  the Independent Directors  was held  
on 30th March, 2017, inter alia, to discuss:

duties.

  The meeting was attended by Mr. M.L. Apte and Mr. D. E. Udwadia, Directors, to  discuss 
aforesaid matters pertaining to the Corporation’s affairs and put forth their combined views 

  Familiarisation program for Independent Directors 

to enable them to familiarize with the Corporation’s procedures and practices. Detailed 
presentations on the overall business, division-wise performance, business strategy, risks 

4. General Body Meetings:

 (a) Location and time of Annual General Meetings held in the three previous years and Special 
resolutions passed thereat :

Sr. 
No

Date and Time of 
AGM

Venue Special Resolutions passed

1 13th August, 2014 
at 4.00 pm Auditorium, 

Gen Jagannath 

Mumbai 400021

1) Consent of the Corporation under section 
180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 to 
borrow monies upto ` 600 crores  over and 
above the aggregate of the paid-up Capital 
and free reserves;

2) Consent of the Corporation under section 
180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 to 
create charges, hypothecation etc. on its 
assets upto ` 600 crores over and above 
the aggregate of the paid-up Capital and 
free reserves; 

2 5th August, 2015 
at 3.45pm Auditorium, 

Gen Jagannath 

Mumbai 400021

1) Approval under Sections 196,197,203 
and other applicable provisions of the  
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made 
thereto to pay remuneration to Mr. Ness 
Wadia, Managing Director with effect  
from April, 01, 2014, on the terms and 
conditions as recommended by the NRC 
for the remaining period of his tenure ie. 
up to  March, 31, 2016.
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Sr. 
No

Date and Time of 
AGM

Venue Special Resolutions passed

3 5th August, 2016 
at 4.00pm Watumull 

Auditorium, 
Dinshaw 
Vachha Road,  
Mumbai 400020 

1) Approval under Sections 196,197,203 
and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules  
made thereto (including any statutory 

read with section II of Part II of Schedule 
V of the act and subject to the approval of 
Central government and other approvals 
sanctions or permissions, if any to the 

accorded to the re-appointment of  Mr. 
Ness Wadia , as Managing Director for a 
period of 5 years  with effect  from April, 
01, 2016 to 31st March, 2021, on the terms 
and conditions as recommended by the 

  During the year under review, the Corporation sought the approval of the shareholders by 
th December, 2016  for i) 

making loans, investments under section 186 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (II) issue of Redeemable Non – Convertible Debentures upto ` 150 
Crores, as per the details given below:

Sr.  
No.

Description of Resolution No. of votes 
polled

Votes cast for Votes cast 
against

1. Special Resolution: 
To give loans to any person 
or body corporate, give any 
guarantee or provide any 
security in connection with a 
loan to any body corporate or 
person and acquire by way 
of subscription, purchase or 
otherwise, the securities of 
any other body corporate 
upto aggregate of ` 500 
crores pursuant to section 
186 of the Companies Act, 
2013.

5,47,81,305 
votes

5,43,54,369 
(99.22%)

4,26,936 
(0.78%)

2. Special Resolution: 
To issue Redeemable Non-
Convertible Debentures 
upto ` 150 crores on private 
placement basis.

5,47,78,530 
votes

5,45,86,821 
(99.65%)

1,91,709 
(0.35%)

  The resolutions were approved by the shareholders with the requisite and overwhelming 
majority.
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on 31st January, 2017.

 (c) Whether any Special Resolution is proposed to be passed through postal ballot this year: 

the relevant time.

5. Other Disclosures: 

 (a) Related Party Transactions :

  The Corporation has formulated a policy on Related Party Transactions and also on dealing 
with Related Party Transactions. The policy is disclosed on the website of the Corporation 

basis and do not attract the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. However 
in compliance with the requirement of the aforesaid Regulation 23, prior approval of the Audit 
Committee was sought for entering into the Related Party Transactions wherever required. 

  All transactions with related parties  are reported to the Audit Committee  periodically .None 

Corporation .

 (b) Accounting Treatment :

adopted the Indian Accounting Standards  ( ‘Ind As’ ) with effect from1st April, 2016.

 (c) Dividend Distribution Policy:

  The Corporation has adopted a Dividend Distribution Policy in accordance with the 

on the website of the Corporation.

 (d) Risk Management: 

  A detailed review of business risks and the Corporation’s plan to mitigate them is presented 

continuous process within the Corporation and regularly updated to the Audit Committee 

 (e) Code of Conduct: 

for all employees of the Corporation. The Code has also been posted on the Corporation’s 

 (f) Details of non-compliance by the Corporation, penalties, and strictures imposed on the 

authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three years: None. 
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 (h) Code for Prevention of Insider Trading:

  The Corporation has adopted a Code of Conduct to regulate, monitor and report trading 
by insiders and code of practices and procedures for fair disclosures of unpublished price 

Trading) Regulations, 2015.  The Code has also been posted on the Corporation’s website  

have access to unpublished price sensitive information of the Corporation  are governed by 
this Code.

Prohibition and Redressal) Act,2013

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder for prevention and redressal 

year 2016-2017.

 (j) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and discretionary requirements 
Revelation 27: 

  The Corporation has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance. 

report against each item.

6. Means of Communication:

published  in The  Free Press Journal (English) and Navshakti ( Marathi).

 (v) Whether presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts:  No 

 (vi) Whether Management Discussion and Analysis Report  forms  part of the  Annual Report : 
Yes
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7. General Shareholder Information :
 (a) AGM : Date, Time and Venue: 
  Thursday, 3rd

Mumbai 400021.
 (b) Financial Calendar (tentative):

Financial reporting for the quarter ending June, 2017 th August, 2017

Financial reporting for the quarter ending September, 2017 th November, 2017

Financial reporting for the quarter ending December, 2017 th February, 2018

Financial reporting for the year ending 31st  March, 2018 th May, 2018

Annual General Meeting for the year ending 31st  March, 2018
week of August, 2018

 (c) Book closure period: 22nd July, 2017 to 3rd August, 2017 (both days inclusive).
 (d) Dividend payment date: 10th August, 2017.
 (e) Listing on Stock Exchanges: The Corporation’s Securities are listed at

   
2018.

 (f) Stock Code:

 (g) Stock Market Data: 
 (h) Stock Performance: 
 (i) Registrar & Transfer Agents:

with effect from 1st April, 2016 to handle the entire share registry work, both physical 
and electronic. Accordingly, all documents, transfer deeds, demat requests and other 

  Karvy Computershare Pvt. Ltd.
  Unit: The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Limited

  Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad – 500 032
  Email Id: einward.ris@karvy .com

  Website: www.karvycomputershare.com
  E-mail: einward.ris@karvy.com
 (j) Share Transfer System:
  Share transfers in physical form are registered within a period of 7 to 15 days from the date 

1st April, 2016 to 31st March, 2017 were:
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Particulars No. of Transfers No. of Shares
Transfers 18 15,700
Transmission 33 24,950
Total 51 40,650

 (k) Dematerialisation of shares:
  The Corporation’s shares are available for dematerialization with both the Depositories 

i.e., National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) 
Limited (CDSL). 87.93% of the paid-up capital of the Corporation were held in  dematerialized 
form  as on 31st March, 2017.

 (l) (i) Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March, 2017.
Group of Shares No. of Shareholders No. of Shares held % of Total Shares
1 to 500 15065 20,01,947 2.87
501 to 1000 1451 12,07,119 1.73
1001 to 2000 887 13,50,084 1.93
2001 to 3000 455 11,66,950 1.67
3001 to 4000 205 7,22,966 1.04
4001 to 5000 126 5,80,991 0.83
5001 to 10000 281 19,96,741 2.86
10001 and above 212 6,07,45,102 87.06
 Total 18682 6,97,71,900 100.00

  2) Shareholding pattern as on 31st March, 2017.
Particulars No. of Shares held % of Shares

4,59,85,745 65.91
21,095 0.03

Insurance Companies 6,69,708 0.96
28,82,329 4.13

FIIs and FPI 10,09,141 1.45
Others 1,92,03,882 27.52
Total 6,97,71,900 100.00

(77) of the Companies Act, 2013, Archway Investments Company Limited, Nowrosjee 

Trading Co. Ltd.

 (m) Audit of Reconciliation of Share Capital:

  
Reconciliation of Share Capital to reconcile the total admitted capital with National Securities 
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the 
total issued and paid up capital. This audit is carried out every quarter and the report there 

in agreement with the aggregate of the total number of shares in dematerialized form held 
with NSDL and CDSL and total number of shares in physical form.
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 (n) Unpaid Dividend :

  In terms of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 (erstwhile Section 205C of the Companies 
Act, 1956) read with the Investor Education and Protection Fund (Accounting, Audit, Transfer 
and Refund) Rules, 2016, during the year ended 31st March 2017, the Corporation has 
transferred  an amount of `
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).

 (o) Plant Locations:
Tea and Coffee Estates 1) Mudis Group of Estates, Mudis P.O., Coimbatore Dist.   

Tamil Nadu, 642117
2) Singampatti Group of Estates, Manjolai P.O Tirunelveli 

Dist. Tamil Nadu, 627420
3) Dunsandle Estate, Dunsandle P.O., Ootacamund, Nilgiri  

Dist., Tamil Nadu 643 005

T.O., South Coorg, Karnataka 571253

Soni, Tanzania
Auto Ancillary Division Plot no. 128-133, IIIrd Cross Street, Nehru Nagar, Kottivakkam, 

Tiruvanmiyur, Chennai, Tamil Nadu  600041
Dental Products of India 
Division Paragana-Rudrapur, Tehsil Kichha,   Udhamsingh Nagar,  

Uttarakhand  263153
Weighing Products Division Plot 304, GIDC,  Gundlav, Valsad, Gujarat  396035

  Email: bbtcl@bom2.vsnl.net.in

 (p) Green Initiative :

April 21, 2011 and April 29, 2011 respectively, read with Rule 11 of the Companies ( Accounts) 
Rules,2014,  service of documents may be made to members  through electronic mode.

  The Corporation has been sending Annual Reports in the past few years  by email to all 
those members whose email addresses are registered in the member records as maintained 
by the Registrar and Transfer Agent.  Physical copies are also provided to such members on 

  We therefore appeal to the members to join the  ‘Green Initiative’ and request the members 
to register their name for receiving  the said documents in electronic mode by sending an 

Computershare Pvt. Ltd. at email id: einward.ris@karvy.com.

8. Discretionary Requirements :

 2. Shareholder rights:

  As the Corporation’s quarterly and half yearly results are published in English and regional 
newspapers having adequate circulation and are also posted on  its website, they are not 
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shareholder in this regard.

Statements. However, the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Consolidated Financial 

 4. Report of internal audit:

  The Internal Auditors report directly to the Audit Committee.

DECLARATION

st March, 2017.

Ness Wadia
Managing Director

Mumbai, 30th May, 2017
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Annexure 1

STOCK MARKET DATA 2016-17

Month Month's High  
Price (In `)

Month's Low 
Price(In  `)

No. of Shares Traded No. of Trades

NSE NSE NSE NSE

Apr-16 426.00 425.50 365.00 364.20 247758 631935 12807 24449

May-16 437.00 437.40 351.50 352.80 240700 807217 12040 30880

Jun-16 423.70 423.90 377.00 376.00 172787 703820 8511 25076

Jul-16 427.70 427.50 390.00 393.60 175312 691551 7272 26158

Aug-16 528.00 528.00 394.00 395.00 1471615 6204806 62910 168129

Sep-16 636.00 635.60 487.00 488.00 1980062 6466904 78338 177015

Oct-16 673.40 674.00 573.40 574.00 1013135 3743147 46285 104122

Nov-16 627.45 626.00 452.80 441.05 433281 1420614 22251 49210

Dec-16 536.60 536.40 474.00 472.95 246107 1042926 15299 40809

Jan-17 619.60 619.00 515.05 516.30 888726 2383550 50153 125428

Feb-17 684.50 683.80 596.75 596.40 931338 2834482 42725 115961

Mar-17 885.00 885.00 675.00 675.05 7244015 11506496 135906 352228
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To the Members of The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Limited

under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

2. This report contains details of compliance of conditions of corporate governance by The 

2017 as stipulated in regulations 17-27, clause (b) to (i) of regulation 46 (2) and paragraphs 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) pursuant to the Listing 

Management’s Responsibility for compliance with the conditions of Listing Regulations

3. The compliance with the terms and conditions contained in the corporate governance is the 
responsibility of the Management of the Company including the preparation and maintenance 
of all relevant supporting records and documents. 

Auditors’ Responsibility

Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither 

5. Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Regulations, it is our responsibility to provide a 
reasonable assurance whether the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated in Listing Regulations for the year ended 31 March 2017.

for Special Purposes issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.  The Guidance 
Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

7. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control 
(SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial 
Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Opinion

we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated in the above-mentioned Listing Regulations.

9. We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 

Company.

CERTIFICATE
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Restriction on use

to enable the Company to comply with the requirement of the Listing Regulations, and it should 
not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or 
assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom 

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Vijay Mathur
Partner

Membership No: 046476
Mumbai, 30 May 2017
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FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) 

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i CIN L99999MH1863PLC000002
ii Registration Date
iii Name of the Company
iv Limited Company
v

details
9, Wallace Street, Fort, Mumbai 400001

vi Whether listed company Yes
vii Karvy Computershare Pvt. Ltd, Karvy Selenium 

Hyderabad 500032
II.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be 
stated

Sl. 
No.

Name & Description of 
main products/services

NIC Code of the Product /
service

% to total turnover of the 
company

1 Tea 1271 32.07

2 Coffee 1272 17.79

3 Auto ancillary 2930, 0271, 0273 40.10

4 Dental Products 3250 9.28

III.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sl. 
No.

Name & Address of the 
Company

CIN/GLN Holding/ 
subsidiary/ 
associate

% of 
shares 
held

Applicable 
section

1
Chemicals Ltd

U24110MH1983PLC012744 Subsidiary 100 2(87)

2
Trading Co.Ltd

U65993MH1988PLC047564 Subsidiary 100 2(87)

3
Ltd

U85100MH1962PLC012345 Subsidiary 100 2(87)

4 Subham Viniyog Private 
Ltd.

U65990MH1987PTC042358 Subsidiary 100 2(87)

5 Foreign Company Subsidiary 100 2(87)

6 Naira Holdings Limited Foreign Company Subsidiary 100 2(87)

Annexure E
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Sl. 
No.

Name & Address of the 
Company

CIN/GLN Holding/ 
subsidiary/ 
associate

% of 
shares 
held

Applicable 
section

7 Island Horti-Tech 
Holdings Pte. Limited

Foreign Company Subsidiary 100 2(87)

8 Leila Lands Limited Foreign Company Subsidiary 100 2(87)

9 Restpoint Investments 
Limited

Foreign Company Subsidiary 100 2(87)

10
Nursery Pte. Limited

Foreign Company Subsidiary 100 2(87)

11
Limited

Foreign Company Subsidiary 100 2(87)

12 Innovative Organics Inc. Foreign Company Subsidiary 58.80% 2(87)

13 Foreign Company Subsidiary 100 2(87)

14
Limited

Foreign Company Subsidiary 100 2(87)

15
International Limited

Foreign Company Subsidiary 100 2(87)

16 Dowbiggin Enterprises 
Pte. Limited

Foreign Company Subsidiary 100 2(87)

17 Nacupa Enterprises Pte. 
Limited

Foreign Company Subsidiary 100 2(87)

18 Spargo Enterprises Pte. 
Limited

Foreign Company Subsidiary 100 2(87)

19 Valletort Enterprises 
Pte. Limited

Foreign Company Subsidiary 100 2(87)

20
Pte. Limited

Foreign Company Subsidiary 100 2(87)

21
Limited

Subsidiary 50.75 2(87)

22 Granum Inc. Foreign Company Subsidiary 58.80% 2(87)

23
Investments Private 
Limited

U65990MH1983PTC030883 Subsidiary 100 2(87)

24 Flora Investments 
Company Private 
Limited

U65990MH1983PTC030875 Subsidiary 100 2(87)

25
Investments Private 
Limited

U65990MH1983PTC030884 Subsidiary 100 2(87)

26 Ganges Valley Foods 
Private Limited

Subsidiary 51.00 2(87)

27
Products Limited

U15419TN1997PLC037876 Subsidiary 100 2(87)
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Sl. 
No.

Name & Address of the 
Company

CIN/GLN Holding/ 
subsidiary/ 
associate

% of 
shares 
held

Applicable 
section

28
Private Limited

U15100MH1984PTC031983 Subsidiary 100 2(87)

29 Manna Foods Private 
Limited

U15400KA1994PTC015687 Subsidiary 100 2(87)

30
Company Private 
Limited

U15412AS1985PTC002361 Subsidiary 99.16 2(87)

31
Foods (India) Private 
Limited

U01549KA2003PTC031859 Subsidiary 100 2(87)

32
Limited

Subsidiary 100 2(87)

33
Associates (Mauritius) 
Private Limited

Foreign Company Subsidiary 100 2(87)

34
Associates (Dubai) 
Private Company 
Limited

Foreign Company Subsidiary 100 2(87)

35 Al Sallan Food 
Industries Company 
SAOG

Foreign Company Subsidiary 65.46 2(87)

36 Strategic Food 
International Company 
LLC

Foreign Company Subsidiary 100 2(87)

37
Holding Company 
Limited

Foreign Company Subsidiary 100 2(87)

38 Subsidiary 100 2(87)

39
Private Limited

Foreign Company Subsidiary 100 2(87)

40
Educational Welfare 
Association Pvt. Ltd.

U85110MH1992GAT242375 Subsidiary NA 2(87)

41
Medical Welfare Assoc. 
Pvt. Ltd.

U91120MH19925PTC242376 Subsidiary NA 2(87)

42
General Welfare Assoc. 
Pvt. Ltd.

U85110MH1992GAT243304 Subsidiary NA 2(87)

43 U15419TN1997PLC037876 Subsidiary 100 2(87)
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Sl. 
No.

Name & Address of the 
Company

CIN/GLN Holding/ 
subsidiary/ 
associate

% of 
shares 
held

Applicable 
section

44
Pvt Ltd.

U01119TN1996PTC034766 Subsidiary 100 2(87)

45
Mfg. Co.Ltd

L17120MH1879PLC000037 Associate 38.18 2(6)

46
Trading Co. Pvt. Ltd.

U65990MH1988PTC047567 Associate 50 2(6)

47
Trading Co. Pvt. Ltd

U65993MH1988PTC047463 Associate 50 2(6)

48
Trading Pvt. Ltd

U65990MH1988PTC047734 Associate 50 2(6)

49
Trading Co. Pvt. Ltd

U65990MH1988PTC046569 Associate 50 2(6)

50 MSIL Investments Pvt. 
Ltd.

U65990MH1985PTC035497 Associate 50 2(6)

51 Lotus Viniyog Pvt. Ltd. U67120MH1987PTC042172 Associate 50 2(6)

52 Medical 
Microtechnology 
Limited

U33100MH1991PLC061881 Associate 50 2(6)

53 Harvard Plantations 
Limited

U65120MH1988PLC048746 Associate 50 2(6)

54 Placid Plantations 
Limited

U67120MH1988PLC048681 Associate 50 2(6)

55 Klassik Foods Pvt. Ltd. U15120MH1981PTC025662 Associate 26.02 2(6)

56
Company Limited

Associate 35 2(6)

57 Sunandaram Foods 
Private Limited

U15412AS2006PTC008112 Associate 26 2(6)

or its Subsidiaries.
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VI.  REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager:

Sl. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of the 
MD/WTD/
Manager

Total Amount
`

1 Gross salary NESS WADIA
(a)  Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 18,849,600 18,849,600

10,148800 10,148,800

Act, 1961
- -

2 Stock option - -
3 Sweat Equity - -
4 Commission - -

others (specify)
5 Others, please specify Retirals 5,995,623 5,995,623

Total (A) 34,994,023 34,994,023

Ceiling as per the Act not applicable
B. Remuneration to other directors:

Sl. 
No

Particulars of 
Remuneration

Name of the Directors Total 
Amount

`1 Independent Directors A K 
HIRJEE

M L APTE D E UDWADIA DR. SHEELA 
BHIDE

RAJESH 
BATRA

(a)  Fee for attending 
board committee 
meetings

240,000 380,000 240,000 100,000 - 960,000

(b)  Commission - - - - - -
(c)  Others, please 

specify
- - - - - -

Total (1) 240,000 380,000 240,000 100,000 - 960,000
2

Directors
NUSLI 
WADIA

JEH 
WADIA

DR. MINNIE 
BODHANWALA

(a)  Fee for attending 
board committee 
meetings

140,000 140,000 - 280000

(b)  Commission - - - -

(c)  Others, please 
specify.

- - - -

Total (2) 140,000 140,000 - 280,000
Total (B)=(1+2) 1,240,000
Total Managerial 
Remuneration

36,234,023

Overall Ceiling as per 
the Act

not applicable
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sl. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

1 Gross Salary Company 
Secretary

CFO Total 
`

(a)  Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 6,068,044 6,100,000 12,168,044

- 900,000 900,000

 -

2 Stock Option  -

3 Sweat Equity  -

4 Commission  -

others, specify

5  - -

Retrials - -

Total 6,068,044 7,000,000 13,068,044

VII PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type Section of the 
Companies 

Act

Brief 
Description

Details of 
Penalty/

Punishment/
Compounding 
fees imposed

Authority 
(RD/NCLT/

Court)

Appeal 
made if 

any (give 
details)

A. COMPANY
Penalty

Punishment NIL

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS
Penalty

Punishment NIL

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty

Punishment NIL

Compounding
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Annexure F

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31st MARCH, 2017 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Management Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To, 
The Members 

 
9, Wallace Street, Fort 
Mumbai – 400 001

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
“the 

Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for 

and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, 

ended on 31 March, 2017 (“Audit Period”) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 

maintained by the Company for the Audit Period according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the rules made thereunder;

of India Act, 1992:

Regulations, 2011;

Regulations, 2009;

2014;

2008;

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
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and

with effect from 1 July, 2015;

Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

  During the Audit Period; the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

to Managerial Remunerations paid to Mr. Ness Wadia, Managing Director of the Company 

Affairs in pursuance of provisions of section 197 (3) of the Act.

the test check basis of the relevant records, I further report that the Company has complied 

  (a) The Tea Act, 1953 and the rules made thereunder;

  (b) The Coffee Act, 1942 and the rules made thereunder;

  (c) The Plantation Labour Act, 1951 and the rules made thereunder.

  I further report that:

were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

participation at the meeting.

carried out unanimously.

  I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate 
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with 
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

  I further report that 
having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, 
regulations, guidelines, standards etc.

(Tushar Shridharani)
Place: Mumbai Practicing Company Secretary
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 2016-17

Division-Wise Business Analysis
Plantation Business:
(A)  TEA:
Industry Structure and Development:

Indian tea Crop:

F.Y.2016-17
Million Kg.

F.Y.2015-16
Million Kg.

North India Tea 
production 1015.22 1008.56

South India Tea 
production 206.76  224.58

TOTAL : 1221.98 1233.14

North India Tea production was higher by 
6.66 million kgs, whereas South India Tea 
production dropped for a second year in a row 
by 17.82 million kgs a decline of about 8% over 
previous year.

South Indian Tea volumes declined, particularly 

weather patterns in form of high temperatures, 
uneven scattered rainfall and increased pest 
activity leading to a change in bio diversity 
and drought conditions. All these resulted in 
crop loss, putting pressure on productivity and 
rising input costs. The companies which are 
only in plantation activities compared to those 

been adversely impacted due to these factors.

Domestic consumption of tea for F.Y.2016-
17 was around 851 million kgs compared to 

year were around 223 million kgs compared 
to 233 million kgs for F.Y.2015-16. Domestic 
consumption has grown by about 2% whereas 

Performance Highlights:

Your Company has its tea plantation Estates 
in South India and has traditionally been a 
commodity market player. lt has been facing 
the challenges over last three years with crops 
declining Y-o-Y and the tea business severally 
impacted as detailed herein.

FY 2016-17 FY 2015-16

Tea production own 
leaf (lakh kgs) 47.80 44.96

Tea production bought 
leaf (lakh kgs) 16.61 29.22

Total Tea production 
(lakh kgs) 64.41 74.18

Total Tea sales (lakh 
kgs) 65.14 78.06

Total Tea turnover ( `in 
lakh) 7,876 8,556

Average selling price 
per kg. 120.90 109.60

Total own tea production during the year 
ended 31st March, 2017 increased by about 
6% over previous year. However the bought 
leaf operation being unremunerative had to 
be curtailed and resulted in decline of tea 
produce by 13%. Thus, overall volumes of sale 
declined by 16.51%. However, average selling 
price increased by about 10% due to higher 
realisation in domestic markets.

teas declined by 28.95%. However the price 

Opportunities & Threats:

Demand for better made teas improved during 
the year. We could tap the growing awareness 
for Organic Teas and sale volumes of Organic 
Teas improved. Domestic market was strong 
resulting in increased price realisations. Our 
capability to make good liquoring teas will help 
us to tap this growing demand from customers 
looking for better quality teas. This, added with 

teas will drive growth in the current year.
We have stepped up our sale of packaged 
teas under the “Oothu” and “Manjolai” brands 
in Organic Green and black tea segment. The 

in producing Organic tea will help to consolidate 
the Corporation’s position in major Organic 
market globally. Your company continues to 
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the category of teas. Further it has started 
shifting its focus from being a commodity 
player to value added tea and brand building.
However, the production being largely 
dependent on the vagaries of nature, adverse 
climatic conditions affect the quality of tea 
leaves and volumes. Onslaught of pests like Tea 

in the light of prescribed usages of pesticides 

labour-intensive industry, rising input costs due 
to wage revisions and possibility of migration 
of labour to urban areas are areas of concern. 
A strong rupee and good domestic demand 
outprices Indian teas in the international 
markets.
Outlook:
Health and wellness is taking centre stage with 
growing awareness for tea. Today, there is a 
growing trend for more premium produce of 
higher quality tea with Green tea growing at a 
quicker pace. The Private labels and regional 
players are growing their market shares.

demand following lower output from Sri Lanka, 
a stronger rupee and larger Kenyan crop have 
however made our teas less competitive. 
Imports to Iran moved up marginally but off-
take from CIS and Pakistan declined.
Indian consumption has been steadily growing 
and share of packaged teas have further 
improved.
Higher availability and lower demand could put 
pressure on global prices though demand for 

(B) COFFEE

Industry Structure and Developments:

The global production of coffee for the year 
FY 2016-2017 was 148 million bags and the 
consumption was 151.3 million bags. As per 
International Coffee Organisation (ICO), the 

previous year.

With total production of 5.27 million bags, India 

Further domestic demand is also restricted to 
2.25 million bags. Hence the Coffee business 
largely depends on International markets.

Coffee prices in International as well as 
domestic market were caught up in a broader 
commodity cycle with similar movements 
observed in other agricultural commodities.

Performance Highlights:

During the year, own Coffee production was 
667 tones as compared to 625 tons in the 
previous year. We had suspended bought 
beans operations this year as against purchase 
of 981MT of bought beans last year. We had 
to reduce our buying of coffee fruit to prevent 
more coffees from being offered in the less 
lucrative domestic market, which would have 
pulled down overall prices.

Average price per Kg. realised in last two years 
are as follows:

Grade NYCE/
LIFFEE 
Prices

2015-16 
USD

Corporation 
Average 

for Exports 
2015-16 

USD

NYCE/
LIFFEE 
Prices

2016-17 
USD

Corporation 
Average 

for Exports 
2016-17 USD

Washed 
Arabica 2.92 4.85 3.02 4.44

Washed 
Robusta 1.93 3.36 1.95 2.94

Opportunities and threats:

traditionally important market for us has 
resulted in reduced trade enquiries and has 
also put pressure on the prices. However, the 
acceptance of our coffee into non-traditional 
markets like Korea has helped us to retain 
prices stability.

Offtake by new markets like South Korea, has 
helped us to offset recessionary pricing from 
Europe. Continued focus on increasing sales 

stable.

The continuous recession in commodity 
markets, is an area of concern as buyers 

indicators. Competitors are offering coffees at 

to nontraditional markets, like South Korea 
has increased offtake of Arabica and ensured 
better prices than what could be achieved from 
European markets.
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be marginally lower. These global production 

The lack of rainfall during last year had resulted 
in poor wood formation and will have a negative 
impact on this year’s crop.

White stem borer is a major threat being 
faced by Arabica growers across the industry. 
Vagaries of nature is another threat since the 
industry is dependent on nature.

Outlook:

We produce and market premium Coffees such 
as Washed Arabica and Robusta, in Specialty 
segment. Premium Coffees are the core of our 

from commoditization. Our thrust towards 
improving quality has won number of awards 

prices.

Retail roasters continue to need good, 
consistent coffees in their blends and this has 
helped us maintain prices closer to previous 
year’s levels and better than the international 

The Corporation’s Coffee curing unit is well 
equipped to handle not only the in-house curing 

beans from small growers. This has helped the 
Corporation to increase its overall activities 
and improve the price realization by catering to 

The Corporation has also implemented 

at the pulp house and convert the same into 
energy.

AUTO ELECTRIC COMPONENTS BUSINESS

Industry Structure and Developments

The Indian Auto-Components Industry 
continued to be stagnant due to the 
unfavourable economic conditions, poor 
market sentiments led by an atmosphere 

Ambiguity (VUCA environment).

The industry accounts for 7.1 per cent of the 
country’s Gross Domestic Product (GDP).

The Two Wheelers segment and Passenger 
Vehicle (PV) segment contributes 81% and 
13% of market share, respectively. Several 

Cummins) and Auto components manufacturer 
(like KIA Motors, KSPG, INFAC, WIA Motors) 
have started investing in various segments 

India plans to introduce new green urban 

III vehicles to reduce carbon foot prints. The 

same has not been supported in the union 
budget.

Globally, the auto industry has got affected by 

market saturation and OE players moving to 

Performance Highlights

ELECTROMAGS division is dependent on 
the Auto Industry especially Passenger cars, 
Two Wheelers and Commercial vehicles. The 
performance of the industry has a direct impact 
on the Division’s performance.

The segment wise share of business for the 
division for the FY 16-17 was as follows:

Segment FY 16-17
Four Wheelers 79%

Two Wheelers 9%

ATM Parts 11%

Power Equipments 1%

Even though the overall Auto Industry grew 
marginally during the year, the Division’s major 
end Customers like TATA Motors, Delphi, and 

supplied during FY 16-17. The New Product 
Development Projects were also adversely 
impacted due to longer validation periods 
with OEM’s. Never the less, the Division 
released New Products worth of ` 5 Crores for 
production during FY 16-17.
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Opportunities and Threats

Due to recent Government Policy change 
allowing 100% FDI through Make in India effort, 
more foreign OEM’s and Auto component 
manufacturers are likely to set up facilities in 
India.

grow with the positive growth in passenger 
vehicle segment. The Division’s New Product 
Development team is working towards these 
opportunities.

Environmental imperatives and safety 
requirements are two critical issues facing the 
Auto Industry worldwide. Indian Auto industry 

on the environmental front by adopting 
stringent emission norms and is progressively 
aligning with international technical and safety 
standards. The new Euro VI norms will be in 

segment.

The overall growth of two wheeler industries is 

The major areas of concern are volatility in raw 

and increased input and labour costs. Rapidly 
changing technology and the need to introduce 
new models by OEM’s are making product life 
cycles shorter and thereby rapid change in 
Electronics assemblies and sensors that the 
division has got to focus in coming years.

Outlook

FY 2017-18. The major contribution of about 
`
Developments.

non-auto segment as well. We have initiated 
actions in the non auto sector to de-risk our 
share in Auto.

ever increasing and is now required to 
be comparable to international standards 
which need to be matched with improved 

manufacturing facilities and fully automated 
lines and in-house testing facilities. There were 
number of products recalls in the previous two 
years, which has resulted in increased focus on 
quality by OEM’s.

High attrition and limited availability of trained 
manpower are major concerns for the Division. 
Technology up-gradation to move from Electro 
mechanical to Electronics and mutli sourcing 
policy by customers are the other areas of 
concern.

HEALTHCARE BUSINESS

Industry Structure and Development

Indian dental care services sector has grown 
at a rate of 10% over the years 2013-2016. 
The market has witnessed sizable growth 
on account of increasing aging population, 
improvement in oral care awareness, modern 
healthcare infrastructure and demand of dental 
cosmetic surgeon in the country.

Indian dental care service industry comprises 
of several dental care services such as 
endodontic, prosthodontic, orthodontic, 
periodontic, dental implants, dental cosmetics 
and others. The endodontic dental service has 
been a predominant revenue segment in the 
dental care services market over the years. 
The companies in dental services market are 

of dental tourists who travels across India with 
the basic purpose of dental treatment owing to 
lower cost.

For a population of over 1.2 billion, there 
are currently over 1,80,000 dentists, which 
include 35,000 specialists practicing in different 
disciplines in the country. The number of 

and the dental specialists to 50,000. Every year 
more than 24,500 dental graduates are added 
to the list.

Performance Highlight:

The Dental Products division has registered a 
growth rate of 6.12% over last year turnover. 
However the turnover of division’s key product, 
alloy has declined by 6.23% compare to last 
year since dentists prefer more composites 
than alloy for teeth restoration. At the same 
time the division has outperformed in other key 
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product groups like dental impression materials 
with sales growth of 12.37% and dental X-Ray 

previous year.

Opportunities and Threats:

The dental clinic chains have grown rapidly 
in the country. An increase in the disposable 
income and a subsequent rise in per capita 

supported by growing awareness about 
healthcare in the recent times have been the 
prime factors augmenting the growth.

Every year around 12000 new practices start 
in the India. There is a great demand over 
supply of dental technician in India. Currently 
there are 5000 laboratories yet only 32 colleges 
offer diploma courses for the post of dental 
technician. More colleges are now offering the 
course to match the growing demand.

Looking at India’s rapidly growing market, many 

in India. A large portion of dental products 

investment groups are also building hospitals 
with dental specializations, offering general 
dental care, and specialty treatment.

Outlook:

The division is optimistic about a good growth 

no growth at all on one of the major product 
category like dental alloy. The division is 
planning to launch dental implants in FY 2017-
18 and also to add some more consumable 
products in the portfolio like Root Canal Sealer, 

Restorative Dental Material.

Human Resources:

The Corporation regards human resources as 
a valuable asset. The Corporation evaluates 
performance of all employees on annual basis. 
Key result areas of employees have been well 

performance. The training needs of employees 
are periodically assessed and training programs 
are conducted using internal resources and 

Cautionary Statement:

Statements in the Management Discussion 
and Analysis describing the Corporation’s 
objectives, projections, estimates, and 

statements’ within the meaning of applicable 
securities laws and regulations. Actual results 

or implied. Important factors that could make 
a difference to the Corporation’s operations 

supply and price conditions in the domestic 
and overseas markets in which the Corporation 
operates, changes in the Government 

other incidental factors.
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SECTION A : GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

1 Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the 
Company

L99999MH1863PLC000002

2 Name of the Company
Limited 

3 Registered Address 9, Wallace Street, Fort, Mumbai 400001.
4 Website www.bbtcl.com
5 Email id bbtcl@bom2.vsnl.net.in
6 Financial Year reported 2016-2017
7 Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in Plantations, Auto Electric Components, 

Healthcare
8 Tea, Coffee, Auto Electric Components, 

Dental Products
9 Total number of locations where business 

activity is undertaken by the Company:
(a) Number of International locations 

(provide details of major 5);
(a) Two International locations:

(ii) Suite 628, 6th Floor, Pan Global Plaza, Jalan 

(b) Number of National locations. (b) Seven National locations: details are 
provided under ‘General Shareholders 
Information’ in the Corporate Governance 
Report.

10 Markets served by the Company: The products of the Corporation have 
national and international presence.

SECTION B : FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY

1 Paid up Capital (INR) ` 1,396.27 lakhs 

2 Total Turnover (INR) ` 31,853 lakhs

3 ` (320 lakhs)

4 Total spending on Corporate Social ` 13.74 lakhs; Percentage Nil in view of 
substantial loss.

5
above has been incurred.

(a) Maintenance of Roads through the Estates 
at Mudis, Dunsandle and Singampatti for 
public use;

(b) Maintenance of residential quarters and 
water supply to these quarters  used 
by Government  authorities on the 
plantations;

(c) Repairs and maintenance of school 
buildings owned by the Corporation and 
used by general public.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT
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SECTION C : OTHER DETAILS

1
subsidiaries

Yes; the  list of subsidiaries is  provided in 
Form  MGT 9 forming part of  Directors’ 

2 Do the subsidiary companies participate in 

parent Company? If yes, then indicate the 
number of such subsidiary companies

initiatives as applicable and appropriate.

3
distributors etc.) that the company does 

Responsibility  activities of the Company? 
If yes, then indicate the percentage of such 

more than 60%]

Corporation engages with its stakeholders 

SECTION D: BR INFORMATION

1 Mr. Ness Wadia
DIN : 00036049
Designation: Managing Director

2
Head

Name : Mr. Amit Chhabra

Telephone No.: 22197101
Email id : bbtcl@bom2.vsnl.net.in

2. Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy/ Policies

 The National Voluntary Guidelines (NVGs) on Social, Environmental and Economic 

Accountability.

throughout their life cycle.

especially those who are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized.

responsible manner.

a responsible manner.
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(a) Details of Compliances (Reply in Y/N)

Sr. 
No.

Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

1 Do you have policies for Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

2 Has the policy being formulated in 
consultation with the relevant stakeholders?

Yes

3 Does the policy conform to any national 
 

(50 words)

The policies conform to National and 
International standards as applicable.

4 Policies mandated under the Companies Act, 

are approved by the Managing Director or 

5

oversee the implementation of the policy?

The Corporation has Ethics Committee,  
Committee, Audit Committee, Complaints 
Committee and also adequate internal control 
systems to oversee the implementation of 
policies.

6 Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed 
online?

The links to view the policies online are 
given herein below.

7 Has the policy been formally communicated 

stakeholders?

Yes, wherever applicable.

8 Does the company have in-house structure Yes

9 Does the Company have a grievance 

policies to address stakeholders’ grievances 

Yes, wherever appropriate.

10 Has the company carried out independent Yes, wherever appropriate.



64

The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Limited

Links to the Corporation’s Policies:

 

 

 

(b)  If answer to the question at serial no. 1 against any principle is ‘No’, please explain why: (tick 
upto 3 options)

Sr. 
No.

Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

1 The company has not understood the 
Principles

Not Applicable

2
itself in a position to formulate and implement 

3
manpower resources available for the task

4

5

6 Any other reason (please specify)

3. Governance related to Business Responsibility (BR)

 (a) Indicate the frequency with which the Board of Directors, Committee of the Board or CEO 
to assess the BR performance of the Company. Within 3 months, 3-6 months, Annually, 
more than 1 year :

 (b) Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability Report? What is the hyperlink for 
viewing this report? How frequently it is published?

bbtcl.com.

SECTION E : PRINCIPLE-WISE PERFORMANCE

Principle 1: Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and 
Accountability

1. Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption cover only the company? Yes/No. 
Does it extend to the Group/Joint Ventures/ Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/Others?

 The Corporation abides by the Wadia Group Code of Conduct which strives for transparency 
and fairness in all business dealings. Good Corporate Governance has been an integral part of 
the running of businesses within the Wadia Group much before it became legally enforceable.
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 The Wadia Code of Conduct outlines the principles, policies and laws that govern the activities 
of the Corporation and which the employees of the Corporation must adhere to. The Code 
is circulated to all employees and Directors and others associated with the business of the 
Company and offers guidance for professional conduct.

senior employees.

employees and Directors to approach the Ethics Committee or Chairman of the Audit Committee 

a platform for reporting unethical behavior, fraud and actual or potential violation of the Code.

free from any form of discrimination or conduct which can be considered as harassing, coercive 
or disruptive.

obtained from the Supplier during commencement of business relations in the Plantations.

percentage was satisfactorily resolved by the management? If so, provide details thereof, in 
about 50 words or so.

of Conduct.

Principle 2 : Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to 
sustainability throughout their life cycle.

1. List up to 3 of your products or services whose design has incorporated social or environmental 
concerns, risks and/or opportunities:

 The Corporation is into Tea and Coffee Plantations spread over four groups of Estates in Tamil Nadu 

Alliance, UTZ and Organic norms which ensure that environmental and social concerns are taken 

which evaluates the social, economic, agronomical, environmental performance of Indian Tea 
estates. 

2. For each such product, provide the following details in respect of resource use (energy, water, 
raw material etc.) per unit of product (optional):

throughout the value chain?

 (b) Reduction during usage by consumers (energy, water) has been achieved since the previous 
year?

 

for consumption but also uses coffee mucilage as feedstock for producing bio-gas which has 

offset a percentage of the energy requirements of the tea factories. Rainwater harvesting tanks 
have been installed at Mudis and Elkhill Estates which harness water for irrigation purpose. . The 

protection products and adherence to safety standards for production of safer, healthier and more 
environmentally friendly teas.

3. Does the Company have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing (including 
transportation)?

 Yes.
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4. Has the company taken any steps to procure goods and services from local & small producers, 
including communities surrounding their place of work?

 The Corporation procures tea leaves (bought leaf operations) and outsourced coffee beans 
from small and local producers there by providing them a ready market for their produce and 
also improving their capacities and capabilities.

5. Does the company have a mechanism to recycle products and waste? If yes what is the 
percentage of recycling of products and waste (separately as <5%, 5-10%, >10%). Also, 
provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

waste water and coffee mucilage from the coffee processing plant to produce potable water and 
bio-gas. 

 During the year, segregated domestic plastic waste was recycled into plastic piping in a pilot 
project at Mudis Group of Estates.

Principle 3: Businesses should promote the well being of all employees.

any Company in the growth trajectory.

Towards this objective, the Corporation provides a work environment that is free from any 
discrimination or harassment, promotes individual and collective growth and has adopted various 
policies, procedures and manuals for the protection and welfare of its employees. The Corporation 
is a Fairtrade Producer thereby ensuring optimum wages and safe working environment.

1.  Total number of employees : 5607 

3.  Number of permanent women employees : 2507

4.  Number of permanent employees with disabilities: 2

5.  Do you have an employee association that is recognized by management : Yes, at the  Plantations 
Division.

6.  What percentage of your permanent employees is members of this recognized employee 
association : 57.80% 

training in the last year? 

 (a) Permanent Employees : 95%

 (b) Permanent Women Employees : 98%

 (d) Employees with Disabilities : 100%

Principle 4 : Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive towards all stakeholders, 

consumers, employees, farmers and various service providers. The Corporation understands the 

goals.
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The Corporation also has in place an investor grievance redressal system, Ethics Committee 
which ensures the protection of interests of the shareholders and employees. The website of the 

disclosures.

1. Has the company mapped its internal and external stakeholders? Yes

stakeholders:

 Yes, the Corporation is committed to engaging with all its employees, business associates, 
customers and communities who may be disadvantaged, vulnerable or marginalized.

3. Are there any special initiatives taken by the company to engage with the disadvantaged, 

so.

education, medical care, pension, provision and maintenance of public utilities and to generally 
work towards the upliftment and promotion of welfare of past and present employees of the 
Plantations Division and the general public at the Estates.

Principle 5 : Businesses should respect and promote human rights.

The Corporation’s approach to uphold and promote Human Rights is underlined by the Code 

employee- welfare policies.

1. Does the policy of the company on human rights cover only the company or extend to the 
Group/Joint Ventures/Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/Others?

employees including contractual employees, trainees, consultants etc.

 The Corporation is a Fairtrade Producer and the Fairtrade premium received by it goes into a 
community fund for workers and farmers to improve their social, economic and environmental 
conditions.

percent was satisfactorily resolved by the management?

 During the year, the Corporation has not received any complaint with respect to violation of 
human rights.

Principle 6 : Businesses should respect, protect and make efforts to restore the environment.

The Corporation understands its responsibility towards environment and has taken various steps to 

1. Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the company or extends to the Group/Joint Ventures/
Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/others:

 The Corporation adheres to all statutory compliances with respect to Environment, Health and 
Safety requirements.
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2. Does the company have strategies/ initiatives to address global environmental issues such as 
climate change, global warming, etc? Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink for webpage etc.

bio-methane gas and recycling of waste water from coffee processing plant.

3. Does the company identify and assess potential environmental risks?

 Sustainable development is at the core of the Corporation’s operations which is also outlined 
in the Environment, Health and Safety Practices. The Corporation follows sound environmental 
management practices across all its manufacturing units to assess and address potential 
environmental risks.

4. Does the company have any project related to Clean Development Mechanism? If so, provide 
details thereof, in about 50 words or so. Also, if Yes, whether any environmental compliance 

 As part of Clean Development Mechanism, the Corporation provides the workforce at Mudis and 

replaces use of Liquid Petroleum Gas.

 Energy produced by the windmills installed by the Corporation is used to set off 60% of the 
electricity costs for tea production.

 The Workers in Tea estates have been provided portable LED Lanterns to conserve energy by  
reducing consumption of electricity in labour units. 

5. 
renewable energy, etc. Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink for web page etc.

6. Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the company within the permissible limits given by 

 As per the Corporation’s monitoring and measurement, all applicable statutory requirements 

7. Number of show cause/ legal notices received from CPCB/SPCB which are pending (i.e. not 
resolved to satisfaction) as on end of Financial Year.

pending as on end of the Financial Year 2016-17.

in a responsible manner.

1. Is your company a member of any trade and chamber or association? If Yes, Name only those 
major ones that your business deals with:

 

2. Have you advocated/lobbied through above associations for the advancement or 
improvement of public good? Yes/No; if yes specify the broad areas ( drop box: Governance 
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and Administration, Economic Reforms, Inclusive Development Policies, Energy security, 
Water, Food Security, Sustainable Business Principles, Others):

 The Corporation is actively represented in organisations like UPASI (United Planters’ Association 
of South India). However, the Corporation prefers to be part of the broader policy development 

Principle 8 : Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development.

The Corporation supports the principle of inclusive growth and equitable development through its 
core business activities and through its  initatives.

related to Principle 8? If yes details thereof.

  initiatives are part of the business process of the Corporation. Details of  initiatives are provided 

2. Are the programmes/projects undertaken through in-house team/own foundation/external 

 The initiatives are undertaken through in-house team.

3 Have you done any impact assessment of your initiative?
 The  activities are placed before the  Committee for its review and assessment.
4. What is your company’s direct contribution to community development projects- Amount in 

INR and the details of the projects undertaken?
 ` 

5. Have you taken steps to ensure that this community development initiative is successfully 
adopted by the community? Please explain in 50 words, or so.

community at large.
Principle 9 : Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers 
in a responsible manner
1. What percentage of customer complaints/consumer cases are pending as on the end of 

 The Corporation has resolved all customer complaints received during the year 2016-2017.
2. Does the company display product information on the product label, over and above what is 

mandated as per local laws?

or so.
 None.
4. Did your company carry out any consumer survey/ consumer satisfaction trends?
 The Corporation carries out customer satisfaction surveys periodically and the results are 

shared with the relevant stakeholders to take necessary action.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of 
The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Limited
Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Auditors’ Responsibility

Opinion

Emphasis of Matters

`

`
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Other Matter

`
`

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Vijay Mathur

th
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`

Particulars Freehold Land Buildings

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT – 31ST MARCH, 2017
(Referred to in our report of even date)
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Name of the 
Statute

Nature of the 
dues

Amount (` in 
Lakhs)

Period to which the 
amount relates

Forum where 
dispute is pending

`

Vijay Mathur

th
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Auditors’ Responsibility

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE BOMBAY BURMAH TRADING 

CORPORATION, LIMITED – 31ST MARCH, 2017
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Opinion

Other matters

Vijay Mathur

th
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2017

`
Note As at

31st March, 2017
As at

31st March, 2016

As at

1st April, 2015
A ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
2 (a)  11,311  11,580  11,078 
2 (a)  314  76  92 
2 (b)  15  15  16 
2 (c)  42  44  26 

3  27,102  6,658  6,659 

4 (a)  314  14,261  19,086 
5  95  96  140 
6 582  174  524 
7  415  415  467 

8 (a)  502  374  596 
8 (b)  253  370  267 

Total non-current assets  40,945  34,063  38,951 

CURRENT ASSETS
9 (a)  6,079  9,262  9,910 
9 (b)  229  159  114 

4 (b) 1,314 - -
10 3,519 4,328 4,903 

11 (a) 2,721 509 5,334 
11 (b) 109 101 94 

12 14,451 15,420 15,172 
13  - 115  51 
14 106 73 1,598 
15 1,272  981  966 

Total current assets 29,800 30,948 38,142 
TOTAL ASSETS 70,745 65,011 77,094 

B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY 

16  1,396  1,396  1,396 
17  31,317  26,054  34,795 

Total equity  32,713  27,450  36,191 
LIABILITIES
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

18  6,052 8,468  9,862 
19  51 34  - 
20  154 134  111 

Total non current liabilities  6,257 8,636  9,973 
CURRENT LIABILITIES

21 24,496 21,687  19,273 
22 2,347 2,581  3,260 
23 4,649 4,175 7,467 
24 190 222 251 
25  93  260  409 

- - 270
Total current liabilities  31,775  28,925  30,930 
Total liabilities  38,032  37,561  40,903 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  70,745  65,011  77,094

1

B S R & Co.LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Limited

Vijay Mathur Ness Wadia A K Hirjee Nusli N Wadia
Partner Managing Director Vice Chairman Chairman

N H Datanwala Jeh Wadia M L Apte
Director Director

Amit Chhabra Rajesh Batra Minnie Bodhanwala
Director Director

th
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2017

`
Note For the year ended 

31st March, 2017
For the year ended 

31st March, 2016
INCOME

26  26,917  24,882 
27  4,936  2,677 

Total Income  31,853  27,559 
EXPENSES

28  8,053  7,937 
 333 1,624

29  3,329 555

 874  784 
30  7,583  7,720 

2 (a) - 2 (c)  829  857 
31  3,368  3,139 
32  7,797  8,076 

 43  83 
Total Expenses  32,209  30,775

Loss before tax  (356)  (3,216)
Tax expense:

 -  - 
 (36)  3 

Deferred Tax  -  52 
Loss for the year  (320)  (3,271)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

  6,507  (4,825)

  (17)  69 

 
 (67)  (17)

Other comprehensive income for the year  6,423  (4,773)
Total comprehensive income for the year  6,103  (8,044)
Earnings per equity share 33

 (0.46)  (4.69)
 (0.46)  (4.69)

1

B S R & Co.LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Limited

Vijay Mathur Ness Wadia A K Hirjee Nusli N Wadia
Partner Managing Director Vice Chairman Chairman

N H Datanwala Jeh Wadia M L Apte
Director Director

Amit Chhabra Rajesh Batra Minnie Bodhanwala
Director Director

th
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT ANNEXED TO THE BALANCE SHEET FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2017

`
For the year ended 

31st March, 2017
For the year ended 

31st March, 2016

A.
 (356)  (3,216)

 (356)  (3,216)

used in operating activities
 829  857 

 13  (76)

 (1,421)  (2)

 (1,063)  -   

 168  (128)

 3,368  3,137 

 (1,697)  (1,792)

 (148)  (237)

49 1,759

Working capital adjustments
 3,112  603 

 1,772 561

 (291)  (418)

 (67)  (2)

4,526 744

 (57)  (52)

 4,469  692

1,429  3 

 34,652  -   

 1,697  1,747 

 (34,902)  -   

 (811)  (1,418)

 (680)  -   

 -    200 

 148  1,824 

 1,533  2,355 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT ANNEXED TO THE BALANCE SHEET FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2017 (CONTD.)

`
For the year ended 

31st March, 2017
For the year ended 

31st March, 2016

 (840)  (691)

 (2,385)  (5,000)

 2,804  2,414 

 -    (7)

 (3,062)  (3,131)

 (3,483)  (6,415)

  

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  2,212  (4,825)

 509  5,334 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  2,721  509 

B S R & Co.LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Limited

Vijay Mathur Ness Wadia A K Hirjee Nusli N Wadia
Partner Managing Director Vice Chairman Chairman

N H Datanwala Jeh Wadia M L Apte
Director Director

Amit Chhabra Rajesh Batra Minnie Bodhanwala
Director Director

th
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (SOCIE)

(a) Equity share capital

`

As at 31 March, 2017 As at 31 March, 2016  As at 1 April, 2015 

No. of 
Shares

 Amount No. of 
Shares

 Amount  No. of 
Shares 

 Amount 

69,771,900  1,395 69,771,900  1,395 69,771,900  1,395 

up
1 1 1

- - - - - -

69,771,900  1,396 69,771,900  1,396 69,771,900  1,396
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1 

 Corporate information

1(A) Statement of Compliance

1(B) Basis of preparation and presentation
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  Functional and presentation currency

1(C) Key estimates and judgements

 i. Property, plant and equipment :

 iii. Recognition of deferred tax assets  : 

 iv. Recognition and measurement of other provisions : 



NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Limited

 

 vii.  Investment in The Bombay Dyeing & Manufacturing Company Limited (‘BDMC’)

 viii. Biological assets

1(D) Measurement of fair values

1(E)

 a Property, plant and equipment
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 b Intangible assets

 c Depreciation and amortization

  Depreciation:

`

 Amortisation:
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 d Impairment of Property, plant and equipments

 e Borrowing cost

 f Inventories

 g Investment Properties
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 h Income taxes

 i Earnings per share

 j Revenue Recognition

  i. Sale of goods
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  ii.  Other income

 k  Foreign currency transactions

  i.  Initial recognition

  ii.  Subsequent measurement

  

 



NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Annual Report 2016-2017

  

 

 m Provisions and contingencies

 n Leases
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  b. Assets taken on operating lease

 o Financial Instruments

  i.  Financial assets

   

   Initial recognition and measurement

   Debt instruments at amortized cost
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   Equity investments

   

   

  ii.  Financial liabilities
   

   Initial recognition and measurement

   Derecognition
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 p Biological assets

 q Dividend distribution to equity holders of the Company

 r Cash and cash equivalents

 s Segment reporting

 t Events after reporting date

 u Standards issued but not yet effective
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3. Investment in subsidiaries and associates

 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

 As at  
1 April, 2015

Investment in subsidiaries at cost 
(Unquoted) 

`

 60  60  60 

`

 74  74  74 

 6,467  6,478  6,479 

`

 6  6  6 

Investment in associates at cost 
(Unquoted)

`
each

 5  5  5 

`

 25  25  25 

`

 5  5  5 

`

 5  5  5 

` `

0 0 0
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 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

 As at  
1 April, 2015

`
`

0 0 0

Investment in associates at cost (Quoted)

`

 20,455  -    -   

   
 27,102  6,658  6,659 

`

 20,455  -    -   

 24,600  -    -   

 6,647  6,658  6,659 

 -    -    -   

 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

As at  
1 April, 2015

Investment in unquoted equity instruments 

`

 113  0  0 

 
`

 193  146  14 
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 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

As at  
1 April, 2015

` `

0 0 0

`  
`

0 0 0

2 2 2

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0

`  
`

 -   0 0

`  
`

0 0 0

` `

 0  0  0 

Investment in quoted equity instruments 

`
 2  0  0 

`

 3  0  0 

`

 -    14,112  19,069 
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 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

As at  
1 April, 2015

`
`

0 0 0

Investment in unquoted debt securities 

`

 1  1  1 

 314  14,261  19,086 

`

 5  14,112  19,069 
 5  14,112  19,069 

 309  149  17 
 -    -    -   

4  (b) Current Investments (Quoted) 

`

 1,314  -    -   

   
 1,314  -    -   

 1,314  -    -   
 1,586  -    -   

 -    -    -   
 -    -    -   

Unsecured and considered good
77 84  78 
18 12  62 
 95 96  140 

`

Unsecured and considered good  257  139 168 
 7  -   30 

 247 30 -   

 305 145 326 
 (234) (140)  -   

 582  174 524 
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8  (a) Current tax assets 

 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

As at  
1 April, 2015

 502  374  596 

 502  374  596 

8  (b) Other non-current assets 

Unsecured and considered good  118  96  52 

 15  18  21 

 414  450  388 

 (294)  (194)  (194)

 253  370  267 

9  (a) Inventories 

 490  421  543 

 289  155  354 

 2,002  5,515  5,868 

 71  30  33 

 425  493  685 

 2,792  2,639  2,416 

 -    9  11 

 10  -    -   

 6,079  9,262  9,910 

` `

9 (b) Biological assets

A) Reconciliation of carrying amount

31st March, 2017
Tea leaves Coffee fruits

Opening Carrying value of Biological assets as on 31 March, 
2016

 159  -   

 3,246  1,516 
 (3,176)  (1,516)

 -    -   

 -    -   
 -    -   
-  -   

Carrying value of Biological assets as on 31st March, 2017  229  -   
The reconciliation of Fair Value changes is analysed below:
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Opening Carrying value of Biological assets as on 31 March, 
2016

 159  -   

 44  -   

 27  -   
 229  -   

Current portion  229  -   
Non-current portion  -    -   

31 March, 2016

Particulars Tea leaves Coffee fruits

Carrying value of Biological assets as on 1 April, 2015  114  -   

 2,192  1,309 

 (2,147)  (1,309)

Carrying value of Biological assets as on 31 March, 2016  159  -   

The reconciliation of fair value changes is analysed below:

Carrying value of Biological assets as on 1 April, 2015  114  -   

 (6)  -   

 51  -   

Carrying value of Biological assets as on 31 March, 2016  159  -   

Current portion  159  - 

Non-current portion - -
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B.  Measurement of Fair value

 i.  Fair Value hierarchy

 ii.  Level 3 Fair values

  

Particulars  31 March, 2017  31 March, 2016 

 58 45

 -    -   

 58 45

Type  Valuation technique unobservable inputs 

Inter-relationship between 

and fair value measurement

`
`

C.  Risk Management strategies related to agricultural activities

 i.  Regulatory and environmental risks

 ii.  Supply and demand risks
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 iii.  Climate and other risks

10  Trade receivables* 

 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

As at  
1 April, 2015

Unsecured 
 3,519  4,328  4,903 

 497  474  445 

 (497)  (474)  (445)

 3,519  4,328  4,903 

11  (a) Cash and cash equivalents 

 13  22  35 

Balance with banks : 

 2,678  384  5,086 

account 
 2  13  150 

 -    53  2 

 28  37  61 

 2,721  509  5,334 

11  (b) Other bank balances 

 109  101  94 

 109  101  94 

Unsecured and considered good 
 12,280  12,960  13,074 

 449  397  333 

 2  -    -   

 69  117  76 

 1,651  1,946  1,689 

 14,451  15,420  15,172 

` `
`
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13  Derivative assets 

 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

As at  
1 April, 2015

 -    115  51 

 -    115  51 

 -    -    1,587 

62  62  -   

 33  -    -   

 11  12  11 

106  74  1,598 

15  Other current assets 

Unsecured and considered good 

 230  112  92 

 765  700  690 

 148  169  184 

 58  -    -   

 71  -    -   

 1,272  981  966 

16 Share capital

(a)  Authorised

 
 

`
 1,500  1,500  1,500 

TOTAL  1,500  1,500  1,500 

(b)  Issued, subscribed and paid up

`
 1,395  1,395  1,395 

1 1 1

 TOTAL  1,396  1,396  1,396 

(c) Reconciliation of number of shares 
outstanding at the beginning and end of 
the year

Equity share

 69,771,900  69,771,900  69,771,900 

 -    -    -   

Outstanding at the end of the year  69,771,900  69,771,900  69,771,900 
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(d)  Terms / Rights attached to each classes of shares

 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

`

 

(e)  Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company is set out below:

Equity share
 As at 31 March, 2017  As at 31 March, 2016  As at 1 April, 2015 

No. of 
Shares % Holding No. of 

Shares
% Holding

No. of 
Shares 

% Holding

 8,719,290  12.50 13,038,600  18.69 13,038,600  18.69 

12,317,275  17.65  9,817,275  14.07  9,817,275  14.07 

 8,395,430  12.03  6,576,120  9.43  6,576,120  9.43 

 4,208,400  6.03  4,208,400  6.03  4,208,400  6.03 

 6,141,505  8.81  6,141,505  8.81  6,141,505  8.81 

 5,660,700  8.11  5,660,700  8.11  5,660,700  8.11 

17  Other equity

 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

As at  
1 April, 2015

 89  89  89 

 3,637  3,637  3,637 

 3,348  3,348  3,348 

 13,408  14,515  18,485 

 (46)  21  37 

 10,881 4,374  9,199 

 31,317  26,054  34,795 
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17 (a) Other reserves

 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

Capital reserve

 89  89 

 -    -   

 89  89 

Securities premium account

 3,637  3,637 

 -    -   

 3,637  3,637 

General reserve

 3,348  3,348 

 -    -   

 3,348  3,348 

Foreign currency translation reserve

 21  37 

 (67)  (16)

 (46)  21

Equity instruments through other comprehensive income

4,374  9,199 

 -    -   

6,507  (4,825)

 10,881 4,374



NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Annual Report 2016-2017

 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

As at  
1 April, 2015

Secured  

 6,035  8,463  9,852 

 17  5  10 

 6,052  8,468  9,862 

` `
`

` `
` ` th

th ` th

th ` `
th `
th

`
` `

` `
`

 51  34  -   

 51  34  -   

20  Provisions 

 154 

 154 
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 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

As at  
1 April, 2015

Secured 

 3,392  11,187  7,773 

Unsecured 

 5,804  6,500  6,500 

 1,300  -    1,000 

 4,000  4,000  4,000 

 10,000  -    -   

 24,496  21,687  19,273 

`
`

` `
`

` `

` ` `

` `
`

`

` `
`
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` `
`

`

 `

 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

As at  
1 April, 2015

 14  -    -   

 1,523  1,664  2,633 

 810  917  627 

 2,347  2,581  3,260 

 2,953  2,922  6,532 

 437  131  126 

 109  101  94 

 344  240  104 

 325  322  368 

 86  32  31 

 395  427  212 

 4,649  4,175  7,467 
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24  Other current liabilities 

 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

As at  
1 April, 2015

 11  6  11 
 151  159  157 

 28  57  83 
 190  222  251 

25  Provisions 

 -    122  188 

 70  118  128 

 23  20  93 

 93  260  409 

26 Revenue from operations

For the year ended 
 31 March, 2017

For the year ended 
31 March, 2016

A. Sales of products and services 

 26,472  24,446 

 (97)  (58)

 15  17 

 26,390  24,405 

 B. Other operating income 

 422  254 

 104  111 

 1  112 

 527  477 

 26,917  24,882 
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27 Other income 

For the year ended 
 31 March, 2017

For the year ended 
31 March, 2016

 18  9 

 1,679  1,783 

 59  103 

 1,063  -   

 242  76 

 87  250 

 58  45 

 1,421  2 

 111  -   

 148  237 

 -    64 

 50  108 

4,936 2,677

28  Cost of materials consumed 

 421  543 

 8,122  7,815

 (490)  (421)

 8,053  7,937 

Opening stock 

 5,545  5,901 

 155  354 

Less: 

Closing stock

 2,082  5,545 

 289  155 

Changes in inventories

 3,463  356 

 (134)  199 

stock-in-trade) and work in progress   
 3,329  555 
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For the year ended 
 31 March, 2017

For the year ended 
31 March, 2016

 6,757  6,831 

 533  482 

 164  169 

 35  61 

 94  177 

 7,583  7,720 

31  Finance costs 

 3,368  3,139 

 3,368  3,139 

32  Other expenses 

 1,276  1,223 
 1,244  1,374 

 215  204 
 255  257 
 113  156 
 161  101 
 115  137 
 120  92 

 1,144  1,441 
 209  346 
 526  438 
 657  717 
 263  286 
 70  73 
 34  44 
 6  24 

 54  48 
 162  122 

 12  15 
 82  77 

 110  105 
 46  38 
 14  47 

 115  -   
 795  711 

 7,797  8,076 
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33  Earnings per share (EPS) 

For the year ended 
31 March, 2017

 (320)  (3,271)

 69,771,900  69,771,900 

 (0.46)  (4.69)

 (0.46)  (4.69)

34 Explanation of transition to Ind AS

 A Optional exemptions availed
 1 Business Combinations

 2 Deemed cost

 4 Cumulative translation differences
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 B Mandatory exceptions

 1 Estimates

 2    
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  Reconciliation of equity as at 1 April, 2015 and 31 March, 2016

Particulars Footnote 
ref. 

 As at  
1 April, 2015 

 As at  
31 March, 2016 

 25,795  21,625 
Summary of Ind AS adjustments

 23  21 
 114  158 
 51  115 

 (33)  (21)

 (17)  (13)

 1  3 

 (2)  (3)

-  (63)

7  698 -
 9,199  4,374 

 (53)
 415  415 

Other changes in equity
7 -  840 

Total Ind AS adjustments  10,396  5,826 
  

Net worth under Ind AS  36,191  27,451

  Reconciliation of Total comprehensive income for the year ended on 31st March 2016

Particulars Footnote 
ref. 

For the year ended 
31 March, 2016

 (3,313)
Summary of Ind AS adjustments

 (3)
 45 
 64 
 11 
 4 
 2 

 (2)

 (63)
 (4,825)

 (17)
 53 

Total Ind AS adjustments  (4,731)
 

Comprehensive income under Ind AS  (8,044)
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 Notes to the reconciliation:

 1 Interest bearing loans and borrowings

 2 Biological assets 

 3 Forward contracts

 4 Deferral of revenue

 5 Security deposits

 6 Depreciation

 7 Proposed dividend

`
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 9 Deferred tax assets (net) :

`

35 Tax expense

For the year ended  
31 March, 2017

For the year ended 
31 March, 2016

  ` in Lakhs   ` 

Current tax

 -    3 

 (36) -

 (36) 3 

Deferred income tax liability / (asset), net

-  52 

Deferred tax expense -  52 

  

Tax expense for the year  (36)  55 
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(b)  Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income

 ` in Lakhs For the year ended 31 March, 
2017

For the year ended 31 March, 
2016

Before 
tax

Tax 
(expense) 

Net of 
tax

Before 
tax

Tax 
(expense) 

benefit

Net of 
tax

6,507 -  6,507  (4,825) -  (4,825)

(17) - (17) 69 - 69 

(67) - (67) (17) - (17)

 6,423 - 6,423 (4,773) - (4,773)

 (c)  Reconciliation of effective tax rate

For the year ended  
31 March, 2017

For the year ended 31 
March, 2016

 ` in Lakhs  ` in Lakhs

 (356)  (3,216)

 (110)  (994)

Tax effect of:

 112  60 

 5  (139)

 (46)  (73)

 0  (22)

 24  845 

 14  323 

-  4 

-  104 

-  (53)

 (36) - 

 (36)  55 

 `
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36 Managerial remuneration

` `

 
` `

(` 31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016

 136  140 

 80  88 

 239  247 

Total  455  475
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31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016

 2,527  2,546 

 155  166 

 200  190 

 (258)  (232)

 20  (35)

 41  18 

 51  (126)

 Obligations at the year end 31 March  2,736  2,527 

 2,405  2,358 
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31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016

 192  187 

 95  (75)

 361  167 

 (258)  (232)

 Plan assets as at 31 March at fair value  2,794  2,405 

 2,736  2,527 

 2,794  2,405 

 Amount recognised in balance sheet asset / 
(liability)

 58  (122)

 155  166 

 200  190 

 (192)  (187)

 164  169 

 112  (144)

 (95)  75 

Loss / (gain) recognised in statement of other 
comprehensive income

 17  (69)

 403  344 

 842  810 

 1,397  612 

 10  10 

 % Invested  % Invested 

1.77% 2.21%

1.69% 2.00%

 -   0.05%

87.69% 82.16%

8.85% 13.58%

100% 100%
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 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

As at  
1 April, 2015

7  -   

7.40% 7.80% 7.80%

7.80% 10% 10%

6% 3% 3%

6% 3% 3%

6% 5% 6%

 58  58  58 

 Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

(2006-08) 

 Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

(2006-08) 

 Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

(2006-08) 

` `

  Notes:
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9 Sensitivity analysis

31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016

 2,553  2,355 
-6.74% -6.81%

2876  2,649 
5.09% 4.85%

 2,877  2,650 
5.12% 4.89%
 2,549  2,351 

-6.85% -6.94%

 2,744 2,512
0.24% -0.59%
 2,690  2,473 

-1.72% -2.14%

 2,706  2,494 
-1.14% -1.29%

 

 

` `
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`

Particulars 31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016

 1,922  1,779 

 1,922  1,779 

 -    -   

Particulars 31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016

7.36% 7.82%

7.82% 7.85%

5% 5%

Attrition rate 3% 3%

Expected guaranteed interest rate 8.65% * 8.80%

 

`
`

38 Leases

  Operating lease disclosure

` `

Sr. 
No

Particulars Year ended  
31 Mar 2017

Year ended 
 31 Mar 2016

 -    19 

 -    13 

 -   -

` `

39 Financial instruments – Fair values and risk management

1.  Financial instruments – Fair values and risk management
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 ` in Lakhs

Carrying amount Fair value

31 March, 2017 FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised 
Cost

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets

 -  -  -  -  -  -

 -  -  -  -  -  -

 -  -  -

 -  -  -  -  -  -

 -  -  -  -  -  -

 -  -  -  -  -  -

 -  -  -  -  -  -

 -  -  -  -  -  -

 -  314  21,583  21,897  5  309  -  314

Financial liabilities

 -  -  - -  - -

 -  -  -  -  -  -

 -  -  -  -  -  -

 -  -  -  -  -  -

 -  -  -  -  -  -

 -  -  37,594  37,594  - -  - -
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` in Lakhs

Carrying amount Fair value

31 March, 2016 FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised 
Cost

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets 

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 115  14,261  20,700  35,076  14,261  115  -    14,376

Financial liabilities 

 -    -    -   -  -   -

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    36,945  36,945  -   -  -   -
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` in Lakhs

Carrying amount Fair value

1 April, 2015 FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised 
Cost

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets 

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 51  19,086  27,765  46,902  19,086 51  -    19,137 

Financial liabilities 

 -    -    -   -  -   -

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    39,862  39,862  -    -    -    -   
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 B. Measurement of fair values

  Financial instruments measured at fair value

Type Valuation technique
inputs

Inter-relationship between 

and fair value measurement

multiple

 C.  Financial risk management
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  Risk management framework

  1 Credit risk

   Trade receivables

Carrying amount

31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016

India  2,737  3,071 

 782  1,256 

 3,519  4,328 

`
`
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   Impairment

Carrying amount

31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016

 1,754  1,853 

 900  1,217 

 536  616 

 230  459 

 595  657 

 (497)  (474)

Total  3,519  4,328 

   Cash and cash equivalents

`
` `

  2 Liquidity risk

` ` `
` `

`
`

`
`
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   Exposure to liquidity risk

31 March, 2017 
`

Carrying 
amount Total Less than 

1 year
1-2 

years
2-5 

years
More than 

5 years

liabilities
-

-
- - -
- - -

- - -

- - -
- -

31 March, 2016 
(`

Carrying 
amount Total Less than 

1 year
1-2 

years
2-5 

years
More than 

5 years

liabilities
-

 -   -

- - -
- - -

- - -

- - -

1 April, 2015 
(`

Carrying 
amount Total Less than 

1 year
1-2 

years
2-5 

years
More than 

5 years

liabilities

 -   
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  3 Market risk

   a) Currency risk

 

Category Instrument Currency Amounts Buy/Sell
 

Sell

 

 Sell

 

 Sell
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 Exposure to currency risk

 

` 31 March, 2017 31 March, 2017 31 March, 2017 31 March, 2017
USD - INR 
equivalent

EURO - INR  
equivalent

GBP - INR  
equivalent

SGD - INR  
equivalent

Non derivative 
Financial assets 

 2  -    -    -   

 529  57  190  -   

 531  57  190  -   
Non Derivative 
Financial 
liabilities

 18  -    -    47 

 18  -    -    47 
Net Exposure 
for Financial 
instruments

 513  57  190  (47)

`

Non derivative 
Financial assets 

 -    -   

Non Derivative 
Financial 
liabilities 

 -    -    70 

Net Exposure 
for Financial 
instruments

 -   

`

Non derivative 
Financial assets 

 -    -   

Non Derivative 
Financial 
liabilities 

 -    -   

Net Exposure 
for Financial 
instruments

 -   
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   Sensitivity analysis

  

Effect in  `  in Lakhs
31 March, 2017
10% movement 

Effect in  ` in Lakhs
31 March, 2016
10% movement 

 -    -   

 7

   b Interest rate risk

   

   Exposure to interest rate risk

31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016 1 April, 2015
Fixed-rate instruments

 17,584  16,200  20,973 
 6,052  8,468  9,862 

 23,636  24,668  30,835 
Variable-rate instruments

 -    -   
 24,496  21,687  19,273 
 24,496  21,687  19,273 

Total  48,132  46,355  50,108
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 ` in Lakhs 100 bp increase 100 bp decrease
31 March, 2017
Variable-rate instruments

- -

31 March, 2016
Variable-rate instruments

 -   -

   c Price Risk

  

   Exposure to price risk

Nominal amount  ` in Lakhs
31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016 1 April, 2015

Instruments exposed to price risk

 4  14,112  19,069 

 4  14,112  19,069 

   Sensitivity analysis - Equity price risk
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` 31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016 1 April, 2015

 0  1,411  1,907 

   `

40 Capital Management

 `  in Lakhs
 As at  

31 March, 2017
 As at  

31 March, 2016

 33,512  33,097 

 2,721  509 

Adjusted net debt  30,791  32,589 

 32,713  27,449 

Adjusted equity  32,713  27,449 

 0.94  1.19 

41 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

 

 `  in Lakhs
31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016 1 April, 2015

b. Disputed demands (net of deposit) of 
Central Excise Department not provided 
for in respect of :

 148  34  29 

 3,553  3,553  3,553 

` `

` `
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`  
` ` ` `

`

` `

`

 

42 Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are provided as under 
for  the year 2016-17, to the extent the Company has received intimation from the “Suppliers” regarding 
their status under the Act.

`

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2017

As at  
31 March, 2016

As at  
1 April, 2015

 14  -    -   

 1  -    -   
 -    -    -   

 -    -    -   

 -    -    -   

 -    -    -   



NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Limited

43 Dividend

`

Particulars 31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016
`

`
 698  698 

 142  142 
Total  840  840 

Particulars 31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016

` `  698  698 

 142  -   

Total  840  698 

44 Corporate social responsibility (CSR)

`

Particulars 31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016

 14  47 

 -    -   

Total  14  47 

45 Payment to auditors

Particulars 31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016

`  
`

 32  20 

 12  16 

 2  2 

Total  46  38 

Particulars
notes

Other 
denomination 

notes

Total

 -   

 -    -    -   
Closing cash in hand as on December 30, 2016  -    20  20 
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 (iii) Details of corporate guarantee
  (a) Details of corporate guarantee given during the year: `

Name of the 
party As at  

1 April, 2016

Given 
during the 

year

Withdrawn 
during the 

year
Adjustments * As at 

31 March, 2017

 -   -

  (b)  Details of corporate guarantee given during the previous year: Nil

  

49 Segment information

 Plantation:

 Health Care:

 Auto Electric Components:

 Investments:

 Weighing Products:

 Real Estate:

Based on above, following are reportable segments as per Ind AS 108

Primary Segment (Operating Segment)  
Based on product lines of Company

Secondary Segment (Geographical Segment) 
Based on geographical area of operation
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A i)  Primary segment reporting (by business segment)
  The Company’s business segments based on product lines are as under :
  - Plantation - Tea 

  - Plantation - Coffee

  - Auto electric components

  - Investments

  - Health Care

  - Weighing products

  - Real estate

 ii)  Segment revenues, results and other information :
`

Plantation- 
Tea

Plantation- 
Coffee

Auto 
Electric 

Component 
Investments Health 

Care
Weighing 
Products

Real 
Estate

Total of 
Reportable 
Segment

External sales 
(Gross of excise 
duty)

 8,695  4,788  10,796  148  2,528  171  -    27,126 
    -     

Other income  124  84  142  2,760  13  5  -    3,128 
      -    

Segment 
revenue

 8,819  4,872  10,938  2,908  2,541  176  -    30,254 
       -    

Segment results  (1,311)  110  1,196  2,908  465  (70)  (43)  3,255 
  

Segment assets  6,855  5,287  6,879  40,919  1,299  196  2,793  64,228 
  

Segment 
liabilities

 677  166  1,454  4,000  259  26  -    6,582 
   -    

Capital 
expenditure 
(included in 
segment assets)

 98  29  405  -    5  -    -    537 
    -    -    -   

Depreciation/
Amortization

 227  225  216  -    12  39  -    719 
   -     -    
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`

Revenues Results / Assets Liabilities Capital Depreciation/

Expenditure Amortization

Total of reportable 
segments

 30,254  3,255  64,228  6,582  537  719 

 

Corporate / 
Unallocated segment

 1,599  (243) 6,517  31,450 46 110

 

Finance cost 
 -    (3,368)  -    -    -    -   

-  -    -    -    -   

Taxes
 -   36  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

statement
 31,853  (320)  70,745  38,0342  583  829 

   

B Secondary segment reporting (by geographical segment)

`

Particulars India Outside India* Total

 

 

 -   

 -    
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50 Related party relationships, transactions and balances

 List of Related parties

 1. Subsidiaries and step down subsidiaries where control exists:

  a) Subsidiaries

  b) Step down subsidiaries:

   a. Subsidiary of DPI Products & Services Limited :

   b. Subsidiaries of Leila Lands Senderian Berhad :

   c.  Subsidiaries of Island Horti-Tech Holdings Pte. Limited :

   d.  Subsidiaries and sub subsidiaries of Leila Lands Limited:
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   e.  Subsidiaries of Britannia Industries Limited:

   f.  Subsidiary of Innovative Organics Inc. :

 2.  Key Management Personnel:

th

th
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 3.  Associate companies:

th

 4.  Other related parties:

th
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A Transactions during the year

( `  in Lakhs)
Name of the related party Relationship Transaction values for the 

year ended 31 March
2017 2016

Expenses charged by them
 79  53 

 63  52 

 -    0 

 10  1 

Expenses charged to them
 84  47 

 38  47 

 4  2 

 0  12 

 1  -   

 1  0 

Interest received
 7  6 

 463  462 

 789  787 

 79  80 

Interest paid
 480  481 

Loan repaid by
 600  -   

Interest on loan given to KMP’s 
recovered 

 1  2 

 0  -   

 0  1 

`
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A Transactions during the year (Continued)

Name of the related party Relationship Transaction values for the 
year ended 31 March

2017 2016

Dividend income
 148  237 

Dividend Paid
 0  0 

Management / Secondment 
Charges received

 2  -   

Expenses recovered
 -   

 0 

 42 

 -   

Management / Secondment 
Charges paid

 -    2 

Professional fees paid
 22  1 

Rent recovered
 0  -   

Loan given to KMPs / Other 
related party

 10  -   

 600 -

Financial guarantee given
 42,923  -   
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Name of the related party Relationship Transaction values for the 
year ended 31 March

2017 2016

Guarantee commission received
 111  -   

Sale of investments
 33,591  -   

Advance / Inter corporate 
deposits given

 -    10 

Loan repaid by KMPs
 50  -   

 2  -   

Unsecured Loan Paid
 -    10 

Remuneration
 -    138 

 349  349 

 70  14 

Sitting fees for board and 
committee meetings

 1  2 

 2  4 

 3  5 

 2  3 

 1  1 

 1  1 

Retainer Fees
 61  69 

`
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B Outstanding balances

` in Lakhs
Name of the related party Relationship Outstanding balances as at 

31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016 1 April, 2015
Outstanding amount payable

 4,000  4,000  4,000 

 16  22  16 

 11  1  15 

 0  4  -   

Outstanding guarantee to
 42,923  -    -   

Security deposit payable
 300  300  300 

Outstanding amount 
receivable

 82  82  80 

 27  -    -   

 3,870  3,870  3,870 
 -    10  65 

 341  352  333 

 -    -    0 

 6,880  6,280  6,280 
 -    -    1,587 

 -    600  600 

 -    52  50 

 12  12  12 

 8  -    -   

 62  62  -   

`



NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Limited

C Compensation paid to Key Managerial Personnel (` in Lakhs)

For the year ended  
31 March, 2017

For the year ended  
31 March, 2016

Mr. Ashok Panjwani

 -    85 

 -    27 

 -    26 

 -    138 

 Mr. Ness Wadia 

 283  283 

 59  59 

 7  7 

 349  349 

 Mr. Amit Chhabra 

 61  12 

 4  1 

 5  1 

 70  14 

 

 Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

B S R & Co.LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Limited

Vijay Mathur Ness Wadia A K Hirjee Nusli N Wadia
Partner Managing Director Vice Chairman Chairman

N H Datanwala Jeh Wadia M L Apte
Director Director

Amit Chhabra Rajesh Batra Minnie Bodhanwala
Director Director

th
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Limited
Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Management’s Responsibility for the consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Auditors’ Responsibility 



The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Limited

158

Other Matters

`
`

`

` `

`

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
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 Vijay Mathur



The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Limited

ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED IND AS 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE BOMBAY BURMAH TRADING CORPORATION, LIMITED– 31 MARCH 2017

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Auditors’ Responsibility

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Opinion

Other Matter

Vijay Mathur



The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Limited

`
Note  As at  

March 31st, 2017 
 As at 

 March 31st, 2016 
 As at  

April 1st, 2015 
ASSETS 
Non-current assets 

2.a  112,755  95,039  84,652 
2.a  3,321  9,083  4,929 
2.b  1,540  15  16 

 106,172  102,500  101,805 
2.c  1,266  1,404  1,330 

Investments in Associates 3  53,247  1,377  1,390 
Financial Assets  -   

4  31,673  51,607  27,351 
5  4,825  20,509  1,347 
6  1,469  4,050  4,091 
7  227  2,264  2,842 
8  3,040  2,698  2,174 
9  16,586 

Total non current assets  336,121  295,504  236,797 
Current Assets 

10  73,389  54,651  51,594 
11  229  159  114 

12  25,624  54,086  56,105 
13  23,074  23,181  20,230 
14a  15,611  12,985  14,501 
14b  6,631  556  17,020 
15  91,222  55,039  42,037 

 -    115  51 
16  3,020  2,420  1,686 
17  38,277  16,080  15,095 

 277,077  219,272  218,433 
 613,198  514,776  455,230 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
EQUITY  

18  1,396  1,396  1,396 
19  232,009  189,944  162,679 

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent  233,405  191,340  164,075 
 142,736  106,704  76,544 
 376,141  298,044  240,619 

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 

20  58,743  30,624  49,683 
21  2,770  2,282  2,034 
22  949  717  593 
29  227  408  529 

Total non current liabilities  62,689  34,031  52,839 
Current liabilities 

23  38,781  44,975  30,611 
24  78,991  81,759  71,965 
25  23,209  23,035  29,014 
26  9,347  9,317  10,007 
27  19,455  19,446  15,649 
28  4,389  3,953  4,308 
29  196  216  218 

Total Current liabilities  174,368  182,701  161,772 
Total liabilities  237,057  216,732  214,611 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  613,198  514,776  455,230 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2017

B S R & Co.LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Limited

Vijay Mathur Ness Wadia A K Hirjee Nusli N Wadia
Partner Managing Director Vice Chairman Chairman

N H Datanwala Jeh Wadia M L Apte
Director Director

Amit Chhabra Rajesh Batra Minnie Bodhanwala
Director Director

th
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 31ST MARCH, 2017
`

Note For the year ended 
31 March, 2017

For the year ended 
31 March, 2016

Revenue
30  971,288  899,820 
31  19,515  16,038 

Total Income (I+II)  990,803  915,858 
Expenses

32  491,565  443,209 
 84,080  73,996 

33  (8)  (180)

34  46,714  45,530 
35  4,342  4,395 

 27,876  23,640 
 13,084  12,587 

 43  83 
36  194,935  193,165 

Total Expenses  862,631  796,425 

items and tax 
 128,172  119,433 

 25  22 
 128,197  119,455 

Tax expense:
 40,316  39,824 
 2,035  433 

 85,846  79,198 
Other comprehensive income

 (40)  (23)
 8  32 

 4,726  (4,873)
 -   

 11,198  (8,863)
 15,892  (13,727)

Total comprehensive income for the year  101,738  65,471 

 43,567  38,623 
 42,279  40,575 

 8,065  (13,728)
 7,827  -   

 51,632  24,895 
 50,106  40,575 

 62  55 
 62  55 

B S R & Co.LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Limited

Vijay Mathur Ness Wadia A K Hirjee Nusli N Wadia
Partner Managing Director Vice Chairman Chairman

N H Datanwala Jeh Wadia M L Apte
Director Director

Amit Chhabra Rajesh Batra Minnie Bodhanwala
Director Director

th
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`

2016-2017 2015-16

 128,172  119,433 

activities

 13,084  12,658 

 547  -   

 (1,259)  918 

 (127)  (183)

 (1,242)  54 

 168  226 

 (614)

 4,342  4,395 

 (10,437)  (8,936)

 (187)  (287)

 (5,690)  (3,852)

 (801)  4,379 

 127,371  123,812 

 (18,862)  21,234 

 991  2,061 

 1,981  (20,579)

 (23,814)  2,028 

 (263)  (9,094)

 (39,967)  (4,458)

 (39,824)  (40,884)

 (79,791)  (45,234)

Cash from operations  47,582  78,578 

 2,237  154 

 9,041  (23,180)

 9,435  10,110 

 2,725  (63)

 (51,251)  (34,780)

 28,806  1,506 

 (36,885)  (28,470)

 187  8,535 

 (35,705)  (66,188)

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS STATEMENT ANNEXED TO THE BALANCE SHEET  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ST MARCH, 2017
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`

2016-2017 2015-16

 19,013  (28,641)

 -    (11,026)

 583  -   

 -    18,274 

 (17,681)  (4,571)

 (4,532)  (4,406)

 (2,617)  (30,370)

 9,257  (17,980)

 12,985  31,521 

 (6,631)  (556)

 15,611  12,985 

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS STATEMENT ANNEXED TO THE BALANCE SHEET  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ST MARCH, 2017

B S R & Co.LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Limited

Vijay Mathur Ness Wadia A K Hirjee Nusli N Wadia
Partner Managing Director Vice Chairman Chairman

N H Datanwala Jeh Wadia M L Apte
Director Director

Amit Chhabra Rajesh Batra Minnie Bodhanwala
Director Director

th
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(a) Equity share capital

`

As at 31 March, 2017 As at 31 March, 2016  As at 1 April, 2015 

No. of 
Shares

 Amount No. of 
Shares

 Amount  No. of 
Shares 

 Amount 

69,771,900  1,395 69,771,900  1,395  69,771,900  1,395 

 1  1  1 

69,771,900  1,396 69,771,900  1,396  69,771,900  1,396 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (SOCIE)
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1 Notes to Financial Statements
 Corporate information

 

 1.a Statement of Compliance

 1.b Basis of preparation and presentation
  Basis of preparation

  Principles of consolidation

  I)  Subsidiaries:
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  II)  Non-controlling interests (NCI):

  III)  Equity accounted investees
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    Business combinations prior to 1 April 2015

    

     Functional and presentation currency

`

 1.c Key estimates and judgements

  Estimates and assumptions are required in particular for:

  i. Property, plant and equipment :
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  iii. Recognition of deferred tax assets :

  iv. Recognition and measurement of other provisions :

  

  

  vii. Investment in The Bombay Dyeing & Manufacturing Company Limited (‘BDMC’)

  viii. Biological assets

   

  ix. Leases

 1.d Measurement of fair values
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  b Goodwill and other intangible assets

 

   Internally generated : Research and development

  c Depreciation and amortization

   Depreciation:

st

st
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`

   Amortisation:

st

st

   Computer software -3-6 years

 

 

 

  e Borrowing cost
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  f Inventories

31 March 2017  31 March 2016

2,473 1,774

  g Investment Properties

  h Income taxes
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  i Earnings per share

  j Revenue Recognition

   Sale of goods

   Deferred revenue

   Other income
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  k Foreign currency transactions

   i.  Initial recognition

   ii.  Subsequent measurement

   Foreign operations

`
` at 
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   Share based payments
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  m Provisions and Contingencies

   Onerous contracts

  n Leases

   

   Assets taken on operating lease
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  o Financial Instruments

   i.  Financial assets

    

    Initial recognition and measurement

    Debt instruments at amortised cost

    Equity investments
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   ii.  Financial liabilities

    

    Initial recognition and measurement

    Derecognition
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  p Biological assets

  q Dividend distribution to equity holders of the Group

  r Cash and cash equivalents

  s Segment reporting

  t Events after reporting date

  u Government grants

oss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.

  v Standards issued but not yet effective:

   Ammendment to Ind AS 7
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   Amendment to Ind AS 102
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Name of Subsidiary
Country of 

Incorporation

Current Year Previous Year
Percentage 

Holding-Share 
Percentage 

Holding-Share 
India 100%
India 100%
India 100%

100%

India 100%

Islands
100%

100%
100%

Islands
100%

-

100%
USA 58.80%

100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

India 50.75%

USA 58.80%

India 100%

India 40.53%
India 46.13%

India 51%
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Name of Subsidiary
Country of 

Incorporation

Current Year Previous Year
Percentage 

Holding-Share 
Percentage 

Holding-Share 
India 100%
India 100%
India 100%
India 99.16%

100%

100%

Oman 65.46%
100%
100%

India 100%

India 100%
100%

India -
India -

Activities

Investments India 50%

Investments India 50%

Investments India 50%

Investments India 50%
Investments India 50%

th implants and 
India 20%

Opthalmic India 50%

India 26.02%

India 35%

th

India 50%

th

India 50%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

DESCRIPTION Technical 
Know-how Trademarks

Computer 
software

Tenancy 
rights

Total

 8 

Net Block  -    5  1,296  29  1,330 

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

 13,154  12,658 

 (70)  (71)

and loss
 13,084  12,587 
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3 Investments in associates 

 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

As at  
1 April, 2015

companies  53,110  1,220  1,236 
 105  124  121 

associate companies  33  33  33 

investments  (1)  -    -   
 53,247  1,377  1,390 

4 Non-current Financial assets- Investments

 294  14,412  19,313 
 25,896  24,655  4,541 
 3,912  11,412  2,502 

 397  60  -   
 1  1  1 

 1,173  1,067  993 
 -    (0)  1 

 31,673  51,607  27,351 

Particulars 
 26,190  39,067  23,854 

investments  26,190  39,067  23,854 
 5,483  12,540  3,497 

investments  -    -    -   

5 Non-current Financial assets - Loans

 Unsecured, considered good;

 20  12  12 

 -    50  50 

 1,382  1,223  1,207 

 95  96  78 

 3,328  19,128  -   

 4,825  20,509  1,347 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  As at  

Unsecured, considered good

 247  2,598  2,535 

 1,222  1,452  1,556 

 1,469  4,050  4,091 

7 Deferred tax assets (net)

A.  Deferred Tax Asset
 275  199  532 

 4,866  4,315  3,146 

 1,011  1,040  1,259 

 691  -    200 

 1,190  1,539  1,691 

 -    21  25 

 415  1,324  1,183 

 -    73  30 

 162  -    52 

Sub-total (A)  8,610  8,511  8,118 

B. Deferred Tax Liability  -   
 -   

 5,904  2,896  2,982 

 2,479  2,479  1,982 

 -    854  288 

 -    18  24 

Sub-total (B)  8,383  6,247  5,276 

 Deferred tax assets (net) (A-B)  227 

8 Income tax assets

 3,040  2,698  2,174 

 3,040  2,698  2,174 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

9 Other non-current assets

 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

As at  
1 April, 2015

 11,918  2,115  2,274 

 1,566  18  21 

 2,097  2,702  1,351 

 -    56  76 

Advances other than capital advances

 1,005  67  1,148 

 1,427  2,018  209 

 (1,427)  (2,018)  (209)

 16,586  4,958  4,870 

10 Inventories

 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  As at  

 30,010  15,293  12,917 

 183  183  390 

 25,973  23,947  24,490 

 2,025  3,381  2,896 

 11,471  8,531  8,275 

 935  678  211 

 2,793  2,638  2,415 

 73,390  54,651  51,594 

 

`
` `



The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

11  Biological Assets other than bearer plants 

 A. Reconciliation of carrying amount 

31 March 2017
Tea leaves Coffee fruits

Opening Carrying value of Biological assets as on 31 March 2016  159  -   
 3,245  1,516 

 (3,175)  (1,516)

Carrying value of Biological assets as on 31 March 2017  229  -   

Opening Carrying value of Biological assets as on 31 March 2016  159  -   
 44  -   

 26  -   

Carrying value of Biological assets as on 31 March 2017  229  -   
Current portion  229  -   
Non-current portion  -    -   

31 March 2016
Tea leaves Coffee fruits

Carrying value of Biological assets as on 1 April 2015  114  -   
 2,192  1,309 

 (2,147)  (1,309)

Carrying value of Biological assets as on 31 March 2016  159  -   

 114  -   
 (6)  -   

 51  -   

Carrying value of Biological assets as on 31 March 2016  159  -   
Current portion  159  - 
Non-current portion  -  - 



Annual Report 2016-2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

B.  Measurement of Fair value 

 i.  Fair Value hierarchy 

 ii.  Level 3 Fair values 

Particulars 31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016 
58  45 
 -    -   

58  45 

days immediately 
succeeding the `

`

changes

a change

C.  Risk Management strategies related to agricultural activities

  i.  Regulatory and environmental risks

  ii.  Supply and demand risks

  iii.  Climate and other risks
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

As at  
1 April, 2015

Financial Investments

 4,351  2,365  2,566 

 11,288  7,681  5,225 

 9,985  41,574  44,777 

Investments in commodities  -    1,298  1,874 

 -    215  148 

 -    953  1,515 

 25,624  54,086  56,105 

Particulars

 14,336  43,939  47,343 

investments  14,336  43,939  47,343 

 11,289  10,148  8,762 

investments  -    -    -   

13 Trade receivables

 23,074  23,181  20,230 

 1,345  1,311  1,190 

 (1,345)  (1,311)  (1,190)

 23,074  23,181  20,230 

14. a Cash and cash equivalents

 38  34  57 

 2,046  1,785  2,847 

Balances with banks:

 12,371  8,895  10,859 

 2  13  150 

In deposit accounts  1,127  2,221  527 

 27  37  61 

 15,611  12,985  14,501 
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14. b Other bank balances

 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

As at  
1 April, 2015

Unpaid dividend accounts  446  400  367 

 44  44  46 

In deposit accounts  5,968  -    16,491 

 111  112  116 

 62  -    -   

 6,631  556  17,020 

 61,900  37,001  36,750 

 829  460  416 

 73  123  130 

 28,420  17,455  4,741 

 91,222  55,039  42,037 

 -    307  357 
 2,958  2,051  1,329 

 62  62  -   
 3,020  2,420  1,686 

17 Other current assets

 1,846  1,156  840 

 8,973  6,893  4,843 

 21,050  3,000  4,184 

Other advances
 6,408  5,031  5,247 

 290  290  290 

 (290)  (290)  (290)

 38,277  16,080  15,095 
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18  Share capital 

 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

As at  
1 April, 2015

a Authorised : 
`  1,500  1,500  1,500 

 1,500  1,500  1,500 

b Issued and Subscribed and Paid up: 

 1,395  1,395  1,395 
 1  1  1 

 1,396  1,396  1,396 

c  Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year :

 Equity share :

 69,771,900  69,771,900  69,771,900 

 -    -    -   

 69,771,900  69,771,900  69,771,900 

`

e  Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company is set out below:

Equity share  As at 31 March, 2017  As at 31 March, 2016  As at 1 April, 2015 

No. of 
Shares

 % 
Holding 

No. of 
Shares

 % 
Holding 

No. of 
Shares 

 % 
Holding 

 8,719,290  12.50 13,038,600  18.69 13,038,600  18.69 

12,317,275  17.65  9,817,275  14.07  9,817,275  14.07 

 8,395,430  12.03  6,576,120  9.43  6,576,120  9.43 

 4,208,400  6.03  4,208,400  6.03  4,208,400  6.03 

 6,141,505  8.81  6,141,505  8.81  6,141,505  8.81 

 5,660,700  8.11  5,660,700  8.11  5,660,700  8.11 
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19 Other Reserves

 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

As at  
1 April, 2015

 1,841  1,841  1,841 

 202  202  202 

 5,160  4,780  4,508 

 48,169  43,890  40,090 

 300  107  45 

 (203)  (203)  (203)

 165,067  143,778  106,910 

 150  150  150 

 8,989  4,262  9,136 

 2,334  (8,863)  -   

 232,009  189,944  162,679 

Secured 
 56,540  28,452  47,557 

 44  49  73 

 35  5  10 

Unsecured
 2,124  2,118  2,043 

 58,743  30,624  49,683 

 

`
`

outstanding is `

` `
` ` th

th ` th

th ` `
th st `
th st
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`
` `

` `
`

`
th

`
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

21 Non-current Financial liabilities - Others

 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

As at  
1 April, 2015

 2,360  2,134  1,996 

 71  41  38 

 339  107  -   

 2,770  2,282  2,034 

22 Non-current liabilities- Provisions

 2  2  2 

 947  715  591 

 949  717  593 

Loans
Secured 

 26,570  25,362  13,423 

Unsecured (Repayable On Demand)
 12,211  15,113  16,188 

Intercorporate Deposits (Repayable On 
Demand)  -   

 1,300  4,500  1,000 

 38,781  44,975  30,611 

st ` st `
1st `

` st ` st

`

` st `
1st `



The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

` st ` st `

` st `
st `

st `
1st

` st ` st

`

` `

` st  
` st

` st `
1st `

24 Trade payables

 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

As at  
1 April, 2015

 269  400  519 

 78,722  81,359  71,446 

 78,991  81,759  71,965 
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 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

As at  
1 April, 2015

 3,838  3,638  7,586 

 18  24  24 
Unpaid dividends  452  400  367 

 325  322  368 
 537  239  253 
 155  112  116 

 -    44  46 
 3,105  2,418  1,437 

 13,787  14,708  17,522 
 992  1,130  1,295 

 23,209  23,035  29,014 

26 Other current liabilities

 6,528  6,107  6,119 

 1,731  1,652  1,777 

 1,088  1,558  2,111 

 9,347  9,317  10,007 

 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

Opening balance  1,558  2,111 

 1,515  1,580 

 (1,985)  (2,133)

Closing balance  1,088  1,558 

27 Short term provisions

 2,044  2,390  2,167 

 5,596  5,317  5,173 

 9,047  8,702  6,262 

 2,084  2,079  2,047 

 684  958  -   

 19,455  19,446  15,649 

28 Liabilities for current tax (net)

 4,389  3,953  4,308 

 4,389  3,953  4,308 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

29 Government grant 

 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

As at  
1 April, 2015

Current 
 196  216  218 

 196  216  218 

Non-current 
 144  215  286 

 83  193  243 

 227  408  529 

30 Revenue from Operations

 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  

Sales of products and Services 
 960,915  891,905 

 15  17 

 441  527 

 961,371  892,449 

Other operating revenue 
 422  254 

 58  45 

 3,147  2,971 

Royalty  253  279 

Rental income  59  83 

 615  -   

 5,364  3,739 

 9,918  7,371 

Total  971,289  899,820 

` `
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31 Other Income

 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

 10,437  8,938 

 187  287 

 -    183 

 1,500  1,587 

loss 
 5,690  3,837 

 1,259  -   

 -    64 

 442  1,143 

Total Other income  19,515  16,038 

32 Cost of materials consumed

 491,565  443,209 

Total Cost of Raw Material Consumed  491,565  443,209 

Opening stock : 
 25,824  26,036 

 2,025  1,583 

 341  390 

Closing stock: 
 25,973  25,824 

 2,025  2,025 

 183  341 

Changes in inventories: 
 (150)  212 

 -    (442)

 158  49 

 -    -   

Stock in trade 
 (8)  (180)

 41,656  41,105 

 2,500  2,282 

 2,011  1,918 

 547  225 

-  -   

 46,714  45,530 
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35 Finance costs

 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

 4,326  4,331 

 9  1 

 -    51 

 7  12 

Finance costs  4,342  4,395 

36 Other expenses

 3,277  3,605 

 588  557 

 1,825  1,673 

 3,174  2,980 

Rent  4,919  4,173 

Rates and taxes  3,772  3,350 

 509  437 

 11,653  10,958 

 45,272  43,457 

 1,270  1,046 

 38  90 

 189  247 

 1,276  354 

 39,665  44,987 

 248  219 

 44,219  45,696 

 1,646  1,137 

 933 

 -    918 

 115  -   

 81  10 

 30,266  27,271 

 194,935  193,165 
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37 Earnings per share (EPS)

 

 31 March, 2017  31 March, 2016

 43,567  38,623 

earnings
 43,567  38,623 

 ii.  Weighted average number of ordinary shares

 69,771,900  69,771,900 

 69,771,900  69,771,900 

 62.44  55.36 

 62.44  55.36 

38   Deferred tax 

 (a)  Movement in deferred tax balances 

Net balance 
April 1, 2016

Recognised in 
the statement of 

during the year

Net balance  
31 March, 2017

 (5,549)

 191 

 551  4,866 

 757 

 690 

 (2,479)

 1,324 

 15  (763)

 1,190 

Tax assets (Liabilities)  227 
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 (b)  Movement in deferred tax balances 

Net balance 
April 1, 2016

Recognised in 
the statement of 

during the year

Net balance  
31 March, 2017

 (3,296)
 199 

 4,315 
 1,040 

 400 

 (2,479)
 1,324 
 (778)

 -   
 -   

 7  -   
 5  -   

 1,539 
Tax assets (Liabilities)  2,264 

`
` `

` ` `



Annual Report 2016-2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

 Tax losses carried forward

Financial 
year

Nature of loss As at 
31 March 2017

Expiry date As at  
31 March 2016

Expiry date

 310 No limit

 1,208 upto FY 2018-19 - -

 60 upto FY 2021-22 - -

 339 upto FY 2023-24  339 upto FY 2023-24 

 19 upto FY 2021-22 

 3,228  No limit  684  No limit 

 70  upto FY 2020-21 

 1,091  upto FY 2024-25 

 4  upto FY 2021-22 

 1,661  No limit 

39   Tax reconciliation 

  Tax expense 

Particulars  As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

 40,352  39,824 

 (36) -

 2,035  433 

 42,387  40,257 
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 Particulars  For the year ended 31 March, 2017  For the year ended 31 March, 2016 
 Before 

tax 
Tax  Net of 

tax 
 Before tax Tax 

(expense)/
benefit 

 Net of 
tax 

Items that will not be 

loss 
 (48)  8  (40)  (115)  32  (83)

 4,726  4,726  (4,873)  (4,873)

loss 
 -    -    (8,863)  (8,863)

 4,678  8  4,686  (13,852)  32  (13,820)

Particulars  As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

 128,197  119,455 

 44,369  41,343 

 194  142 

 34  292 

 625  507 

 (38)  (266)

 -    (22)

 14  845 

 (34)  (31)

 -    541 

 (538)  (2,220)

 (1,034)  (875)

 (1,205)  -   

 42,387  40,257 
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A

` `

 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

 838  781 

 490  455 

 80  88 

 67  64 

 -    -   

 61  65 

Total  1,536  1,454 

B
1
(a)

4,969  4,698 

 378  338 

 375  360 

 (398)  (396)

changes
 20  (35)

 200  49 

 (63)  (44)

Obligations at the year end 31 March  5,482  4,969 

(b)
 4,499  4,214 

 348  334 

 116  (54)

 689  389 

 (398)  (384)

Plan assets as at 31 March at fair value  5,253  4,499 

(c)
2016-17

 5,482  4,969 

 5,253  4,499 

 (229)  (471)
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 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

2
 378  338 

 375  360 

 (156)  (147)

 (192)  (187)

 429  456 

3 Remeasurements recognised in statement of Other comprehensive income
 156  (32)

 (116)  55 

income
 40  23 

4 Amount recognised in the balance sheet:
 1,044  979 

 265  287 

 (328)  (222)

 981  1,044 

5 Experience adjustment:
 (113)  82 

 22  21 

6 Investment details
A The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation Limited

% Invested % Invested

1.77% 2.21%

0.00% 0.05%

1.69% 2.00%

87.69% 82.16%

8.85% 13.58%

100.00% 100.00%

B Britannia Industries Limited and its subsidiaries
2.88% 3.45%

25.02% 22.31%

35.50% 36.25%

3.09% 2.56%

Special deposit scheme 2.89% 2.87%

30.62% 32.56%

100.00% 100.00%
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 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

7 Principal actuarial assumptions
A The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation Limited

7.40% 7.80%
7.80% 10.00%

6.00% 3.00%
6.00% 3.00%
5.50% 5.00%

 58  58 
B Britannia Industries Limited and its subsidiaries

6.90% 7.56%
 6.90% 7.56%

4.00% 4.00%
16.00% 16.00%
5.00% 5.00%
 58.00  58.00 

8
 607  344 

 1,621  810 
 2,550  612 
 4,778  1,765 

9
(years)

10 10

10 Sensitivity analysis
I Discount rate

 5,365  4,883 
-0.17% 0.13%
 5,549  4,998 
6.25% 6.46%

II Salary increase rate
 5,521  5,052 
4.81% 4.70%
 5,389  4,825 

-1.35% -1.44%
III Attrition rate

 5,600  4,963 
0.24% -0.59%
 5,593  4,894 

-1.72% -2.14%
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 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

IV Mortality rate

 2,706  2,494 

-1.14% -1.29%

C

 1,922  1,779 

 1,922  1,779 

 -    -   

7.36% 7.82%

7.82% 7.85%

5.00% 5.00%

3.00% 3.00%

8.65% * 8.8%*

 

` `
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41 Leases:

 (a)  Operating Lease:

` ` ` `

`
`

`
`

Sr. 
No

Particulars 31 Mar 2017 31 Mar 2016

 305  320 

 870  978 

 65  303 

 1,240  1,601 

` `

 (b)  Finance Lease 

Particulars 2016-17 2015-16

Minimum lease 
payments

Present value of 
minimum lease 

payments

Minimum lease 
payments

Present value of 
minimum lease 

payments

24 18  35  19 

46 44  57  54 

70 62  91  73 

`
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42 Transition to Ind AS:

A Optional exemptions availed
 1 Business Combinations

 2 Deemed cost

 

 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

 5 Cumulative translation differences

B Mandatory exceptions
 1 Estimates



Annual Report 2016-2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

43 Transition to Ind AS: (Continued)

Footnote ref. As on  
1 April 2015

As on  
31 March 2016

Net worth under IGAAP
Summary of Ind AS adjustments

1
2
3  51  115 

4,5
8

loss
10

9

6,7
11
11

Total Ind AS adjustments

Net worth under Ind AS

Footnote ref. As on  
31 March 2016 

Summary of Ind AS adjustments
1
2
3
4
4

11
10
9

13
6,7

Total comprehensive income under Ind AS
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 Notes to the reconciliation:
 1 Interest bearing loans and borrowings

 2 Biological assets

 3 Forward contracts

 4 Sale of goods

 5 Deferral of Revenue

 6 Security deposits

 7 Depreciation

 8 Proposed dividend
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 10 Portfolio investments

 11 Deferred tax assets (net) :

`

 12 Excise duty

 13 Other comprehensive income

 14 Share based payment

 15 Lease arrangement
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 16

 

43 1.  Financial instruments – Fair values and risk management 

 

31 March, 2017 
`

Carrying amount Fair value

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised 
Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets 
 -    -    15,611  15,611  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    6,631  6,631  -    -    -    -   

investments
-  294  31,379  31,673  294  -    -    294 

 24,310  24,310  24,310  -    -    24,310 

advances
 -    -    4,825  4,825  -    -    -    -   

advances
 -    -    91,222  91,222  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    23,074  23,074  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    1,469  1,469  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    3,020  3,020  -    -    -    -   

 24,310  294  177,231 201,835  24,604  -    -    24,604 

 -    -    58,743  58,743  -    -    -    -   
 -    -    38,781  38,781  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    78,991  78,991  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    2,769  2,769  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    23,209  23,209  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    202,493 202,493  -    -    -    -   



Annual Report 2016-2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

31 March, 2016  
`

Carrying amount Fair value

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised 
Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets 

 -    -    12,985  12,985  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    556  556  -    -    -    -   

investments
-  14,412  37,195  51,607  14,412  -    -    14,412 

 54,086 - -  54,086  54,086  -    -    54,086 

advances
 -    -    20,509  20,509 -  -    -    -   

advances
 -    -    55,039  55,039 -  -    -    -   

 -    -    23,181  23,181 -  -    -    -   

 -    -    4,050  4,050 -  -    -    -   

 115 - -  115 -  115  -    115 

asset
 -    -    2,420  2,420  -    -    -    -   

 54,201  14,412  155,935 224,548  68,498  115  -    68,613 

Financial liabilities 

 -    -    30,624  30,624  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    44,975  44,975  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    81,759  81,759  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    2,282  2,282  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    23,036  23,036  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    182,676 182,676  -    -    -    -   
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1 April, 2015

`

Carrying amount Fair value

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised 
Cost

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets 

 -    -    14,501  14,501  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    17,020  17,020  -    -    -   -

investments
-  19,313  -    27,351  19,313  -    -    19,313 

 56,105  -    -    56,105  56,105  -    -    56,105 

advances
 -    -    1,347  1,347  -    -    -    -   

advances
 -    -    42,037  42,037  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    20,230  20,230  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    4,091  4,091  -    -    -    -   

 51  -    -    51  -    51  -    51 

asset
 -    -    1,686  1,686  -    -    -    -   

 56,156  19,313  100,912 184,419  75,418  51  -    75,469 

Financial liabilities 

 -    -    49,683  49,683  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    30,611  30,611  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    71,965  71,965  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    2,034  2,034  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    29,014  29,014  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    183,307 183,307  -    -    -    -   
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 B.  Measurement of fair values

  Financial instruments measured at fair value

Type Valuation technique
inputs

Inter-relationship between 

and fair value measurement

to the investee and the 
multiple

 

 

 C.  Financial risk management

  i.  Risk management framework
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

  ii.  Credit risk

   Trade and other receivables

Particulars Carrying amount (` in Lakhs)

31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016

India  13,862  11,828 

 9,212  11,353 

 23,074  23,181 

   Impairment

Particulars Carrying amount (` in Lakhs)

31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016

 14,498  10,799 

 3,405  5,230 

 3,495  5,136 

 647  1,809 

 2,374  1,518 

 (1,345)  (1,311)

Net debtors as at the reporting date  23,074  23,181 
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   Cash and cash equivalents

`
`

  iii.  Liquidity risk

` ` `  
`

`

`
`

`
`

`
`

`

   Exposure to liquidity risk

31 March, 2017 Carrying 
amount Total Less than 

1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 
5 years

`

liabilities
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31 March, 2016 Carrying 
amount Total Less than 

1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 
5 years

liabilities

 1 April, 2015 Carrying 
amount Total Less than 

1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 
5 years

liabilities

  iv   Market risk

   The Group is exposed to the following market risks:
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   Currency risk

    Exposure to currency risk 

`

31 March, 
2017

31 March, 
2017

31 March, 
2017

31 March, 
2017

31 March, 
2017

31 March, 
2017

 USD-INR 
equivalent 

 SGD-INR 
equivalent 

 RM-INR 
equivalent 

 GBP-INR 
equivalent 

 PKR-INR 
equivalent 

 EUR-INR 
equivalent 

Financial assets 

 4,975  2,341  5  -    -    10 

 -    -    105  -    -   

 8,747  -    -    -    -    -   

 1,600  594  -    190  -    57 

 607  115  1  10  75  -   

(A)  15,929  3,050  6  305  75  67 

Financial liabilities 

 47,410  -    -    -    -    -   

 8,943  -    -    -    -    -   

 391  583  5  -    -    25 

 2,194  18  -    -    -    -   

 1,251  19  -    -    -    -   

(B)  60,189  619  5  -    -    25 

 Net exposure (A-B)  (44,260)  2,431  2  305  75  42 
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`

 31 March, 
2016 

 31 March, 
2016 

 31 March, 
2016 

 31 March, 
2016 

 31 March, 
2016 

 31 March, 
2016 

 USD-INR  
equivalent 

 SGD-INR 
equivalent 

 RM-INR 
equivalent 

 GBP-INR 
equivalent 

 PKR-INR 
equivalent 

 EUR-INR 
equivalent 

Financial assets 

 1,507  2,438  2  213  -    11 

 125  -    -    -    -    -   

 16,244  734  -    -    -    -   

 68  191  1  -    77  -   

 1,084  743  -    -    -    -   

 106  -    -    -    -    -   

(A)  19,134  4,106  3  213  77  11 

Financial liabilities 

 18,389  -    -    -    -    -   

 18,675  -    -    -    -    -   

 430  671  6  -    -    5 

 2,237  41  -    -    -    -   

 1,265  17  -    -    -    -   

(B)  40,996  729  6  -    -    5 

 Net exposure (A-B)  (21,862)  3,377  (3)  213  77  6 
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   Interest rate risk

   Exposure to interest rate risk

   Sensitivity analysis

` `  

   Price Risk

   Exposure to price risk

31 March, 2017

 41,829  49,112 

 -    -   

 41,829  49,112 

   

31 March, 2017
 2,091  2,456 
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44 Capital Management

`

As at  
31 March, 2017

As at  
31 March, 2016

 101,362  79,238 

 15,611  12,985 

 85,751  66,253 

 381,650  298,045 

 381,650  298,045 

22.47% 22.23%

45 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

As at  
1 April, 2015

148  34  29 

3553 3553 3553

` `

st

` `

`
` ` ` `

`

` `

`
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` ` ` 

` ` `

  Commitments

31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016 1 April, 2015
 16,825 13890 73

46

 As at  
31 March, 2017

 As at  
31 March, 2016

As at  
1 April, 2015

 

 14  -    -   

 1  -    -   

 -    -    -   

 -    -    -   

 -    -    -   

 -    -    -   
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47 Dividend

31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016

`
`

 698  698 

 142  142 

Total  840  840 

31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016

`
`

 698  698 

 142  -   

Total  840  698 

48 Corporate social responsibility (CSR)

` `

31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016

asset
 1,646  1,137 

 -    -   

Total  1,646  1,137 

Particulars
notes

Other 
denomination 

notes

Total

 -   
 -    23  23 

`
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53 Government grants        

`
` 

`
` `

`

54

55 Research and development expenses- Incurred by Britannia Industries Limited and its subsidiaries

31 March, 2016 31 March, 2016

 2,170  2,185 

 2,614  2,195 

 4,784  4,380 

56 
 

Particulars As at April 
1, 2016

Additions 
during the 

year

Utilization 
during the 

year
Adjustments 

during the year

As at 31 
March, 2017

 5,596 
 9,047 

 11  2,084 

Particulars As at 1 
April, 2015

Additions 
during the 

year

Utilization 
during the 

year
Adjustments 

during the year

As at 31 
March, 2016

 58 
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`

`

57 (a) Related party relationships, transactions and balances 

  1. Key Management Personnel:

th
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th

  2. Associate companies: 
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  3. Other Related Parties: 

   

57 (b) Transactions during the year and outstanding balances at the end of the year 

 

  A  Transactions during the year    

 `
Name of the related party Relationship Transaction values for the year 

ended 31 March
2017

Expenses charged by related party:
 79 

Expenses charged to related party:
Associate  84 

 1 
Interest received

 463 
 789  787 

 79 
 2 

Associate  8,585 
Associate  1,993 

Conversion charges
Associate  460 

ingredients
Associate  123 
Associate  58 

Loan repaid by
 600 

Interest on loan given to KMP’s 
recovered 

 1 

 0 

 0  1 
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 `
Name of the related party Relationship Transaction values for the year 

ended 31 March
2017

Dividend income
 148 

Dividend Paid
 0 

Investments made:
 33,842     

 Associate  6,200 

 9,400 

Expenses recovered
 1 

Loan given to KMPs
 10 

Loan repaid by KMPs
 50 

 2 

Remuneration:
 1,630 

 766 

 547 

meetings
 43 

 70 

 195 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

 `

Name of the related party Relationship Transaction values for the year 
ended 31 March

2017

Associate  (0)
Associate  (0)

Associate  (0)

Associate  (0)

Associate  (0)

Associate  (0)
Associate  (0)
Associate  (0)
Associate  5 
Associate  12 
Associate  11 

`

  B  Outstanding balances    

 `

Name of the related 
party

Relationship Outstanding balances as at 

31 March 2017

Outstanding amount 
payable

Associate  16 

Associate  -   

Associate  -   

Investments made

Associate  6,200 

Security deposit payable

Associate  300 



The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

 `

Name of the related 
party

Relationship Outstanding balances as at 

31 March 2017

Outstanding amount 
receivable

 3,870 

 6,880 

 -   

Associate  8 

Associate  87 

Associate  235 

 -   

 12 

 8 

 62 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

 `

Name of the related 
party

Relationship Outstanding balances as at 

31 March 2017

Investments (including 
goodwill)

Associate  35 

Associate  4 

Associate  4 

Associate  4  5 

Associate  4  5 

Associate  4 

Associate  4 

Associate  4  5  5 

Associate  4  5  5 

Associate  102 

Associate  44 

Associate  73 

Associate  -    1 

`



The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

  C  Compensation paid to Key Managerial Personnel

 Particulars For the year 
ended  

31 March 2017
ended  

 Mr. Ashok Panjwani 
 -    85 

 -    27 

 -    26 

 -    138 

 Mr. Ness Wadia 
 283  283 

 59  59 

 7  7 

  

 349  349 

 Mr. Amit Chhabra 
 61  13 

 4  1 

 5  0 

 70  14 

 Jayant Gadgil  
 96  89 

0  37 

 41  6 

 136  131 

 Teresa Chin 
 51  -   

0  -   

 8  -   

 59  -   

 Geow Chwee Hiam  
 -    174 

 -    5 

 -    4 

-  183

  Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

58   Segment reporting 

  A.  General Information 

  (a)  Factors used to identify the entity’s reportable segments, including the basis of organisation

    

Primary Segment (Operating Segment): Based 
on Product lines of company 

Secondary Segment (Geographical Segment) 
Based on geographical area of operation of 

company

 India and Outside India 
Investments 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

 B. Reconciliations of information on reportable segments to Ind AS  

`

Particulars  For the year ended  
31 March, 2017 

 For the year ended  
31 March, 2016 

(a) Revenue 

 990,381  891,731 

 Unallocated  422  24,128 

 Total revenue  990,803  915,858 

 134,033  124,191 

 Unallocated  amounts  (1,823)  (365)

 (4,342)  (4,395)

 (42,351)  (40,257)

 (42,279)  (40,575)

 25  22 

 43,568  38,621 

(c) Assets 

 606,670  343,183 

6,528 171,593

 Total assets 613,198 514,776

(d) Liabilities 

 340,040  171,701 

39,753 151,735

  Total liabilities  379,793 323,436



The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

 C. Geographic information 

 Geography  For the year ended  
31 March, 2017 

 For the year ended  
31 March, 2016 

I Revenue 

 India  971,769  883,355 

 19,034  32,503 

 Total Revenue  990,803  915,858 

II Non-current Assets * 

 India  154,310  94,418 

 146,083  119,957 

  Total Non-current Assets  300,392  214,375 

 D. Information about major customers 

  

59 Share based payments        

` 
`

` `
`

` `
`

`
`

`
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

Movement in the options under the scheme: 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

 75,000  50,000  -   

 100,000  75,000  50,000 

 25,000  50,000  -   

 25,000  50,000  -   

 25,000  50,000  -   

 -    -    -   

 150,000  75,000  50,000 

 -    -    -   

`  2,583  1,747  870

 Fair Value Measurement:

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

 100,000 75,000 50,000 

30-Jun-16 21-May-15 26-May-14

1 to 3 1 to 3 1 

3 3 3 

23.63% 19.91% 22.56%

7.45% 7.76% 8.57%

0.72% 0.69% 1.84%

`
617.19  524.96  206.18

`
`
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

60 Financial summary of material associates 

 a.  Investment in The Bombay Dyeing & Manufacturing Company Limited (‘BDMC’)

 

  Accounting treatment of BDMC investment  under IND AS 28 - Investment in associates and joint 
ventures  (‘IND AS 28’)

`

31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016 1 April, 2015
50.00% 50.00% 50.00%

 48.63  48.58  48.39 
 4.64  5.18  5.82 

Total assets  53.27  53.76  54.21 
 7.95  7.96  7.96 

 45.31  45.80  46.24 
Total equity and liabilities  53.27  53.76  54.20 
Revenues  0.76  1.70  4.87 

 0.79  1.75  4.88 
 (0.03)  (0.05)  (0.01)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

61 Goodwill

 Impairment testing of goodwill

62 Non Controlling Interests

Non-controlling interest 

 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

1 India 49.28% 49.26% 49.25%



The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

 31 March, 2017

Particulars Britannia Industries 
Limited

Total

NCI percentage 49.28% 49.28%

Net assets attributable to NCI
Revenue 

OCI allocated to NCI
Total comprehensive income allocated to NCI

Net Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Dividends paid to Non-controlling interest 

Particulars Britannia Industries 
Limited

Total

NCI percentage 49.26% 49.26%

Net assets attributable to NCI
Revenue 

OCI allocated to NCI
Total comprehensive income allocated to NCI

Net Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 785  785 
Dividends paid to Non-controlling interest 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

 

Particulars Britannia Industries 
Limited

Total

NCI percentage 49.28% 49.28%

Net assets attributable to NCI



The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

Sr. 
No.

Name of Entity  Net assets 
(Total Assets - Total 

Liabilities) 
 As % of 

Consolidated 
Net Assets 

Amount 
(` Lakhs)

 As % of 
Consolidated 

Amount 
(` Lakhs)

1

5

7

8
 1 

 1 

11

15

17

18

 5 

Foreign Subsidiaries
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

Sr. 
No.

Name of Entity  Net assets 
(Total Assets - Total 

Liabilities) 
 As % of 

Consolidated 
Net Assets 

Amount 
(` Lakhs)

 As % of 
Consolidated 

Amount 
(` Lakhs)

Associates
51



The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

Sr. 
No.

Name of Entity  Net assets 
(Total Assets - Total 

Liabilities) 
 As % of 

Consolidated 
Net Assets 

Amount 
(` Lakhs)

 As % of 
Consolidated 

Amount 
(` Lakhs)

55

 15 
57
58  7 

 7 

 11 
100%  654,598 100%  121,849 

consolidation

Total  373,588  101,738 

B S R & Co.LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Limited

Vijay Mathur Ness Wadia A K Hirjee Nusli N Wadia
Partner Managing Director Vice Chairman Chairman

N H Datanwala Jeh Wadia M L Apte
Director Director

Amit Chhabra Rajesh Batra Minnie Bodhanwala
Director Director

th
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10 YEARS’  FINANCIAL  REVIEW

2016-17
(IND-AS)

FINANCIAL POSITION

1,396 

31,317 

32,713 

30,548 

(415)

62,846 

12,958 

11,681 

Investments 28,730 

Account

0 

22,434 

62,846 

31,853 

32,209 

(356)

(36)

(320)

840 

50.00 

` 51 47

` ` `  
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nd

Venue



The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Limited 
 

 
 

PROXY FORM 
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Item 
No

Description of Resolutions No of 
shares to the 

resolution 
(FOR)

dissent 
to the 

resolution 
(AGAINST)

1

5

7

8

Revenue 
stamp



TEXTILES

AVIATION

REAL ESTATE

ENGINEERING & CHEMICALS

PLANTATIONS FOODS

SINCE 1863

SINCE 1879

SINCE 2005 SINCE 1960 SINCE 1954

SINCE 1918

SINCE 2011



The Group has scaled great heights in innovation and entrepreneurship, inspired by the centuries-old 
legacy of goodwill and trust. The British Coat of Arms, granted to Nowrosjee Wadia, symbolises this 
legacy and the Wadia Group’s commitment to advancement and innovation. 

The crest is a representation of the Group, its philosophy, beliefs and businesses. 

The crest and base of the shield represent the family origins in the shipbuilding industry during the 
1700s. The middle and upper parts of the shield depict the Group’s interest in cotton growing and its 
links with England in the form of the Lancastrian rose. The hand holding the hammer atop the shield 

stands for global recognition and merit. 

The moto, IN DEO FIDE ET PERSEVERANTIA means ‘Trust in God and Perseverance’. 

http://www.wadiagroup.com/ 

If undelivered, please return to :

The Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation, Ltd.
9, Wallace Street, Fort, Mumbai 400 001
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